
 

 

UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549
 

FORM 10-Q
 

(Mark One)
[X] QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
 

For the quarterly period ended March 31, 2018
 

or
 

[  ] TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
 

For the transition period from ____ to ____
 

Commission File Number 333-184948
 

Processa Pharmaceuticals, Inc.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

 
Delaware  45-1539785

(State or other jurisdiction
of incorporation or organization)

 (IRS Employer
Identification No.)

 
7380 Coca Cola Drive, Suite 106,

Hanover, Maryland 21076
(443) 776-3133

 
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12
months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. YES [X] NO [  ]
 
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and
posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit
and post such files). YES [X] NO [  ]
 
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, smaller reporting company, or an emerging growth
company. See the definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer,” “smaller reporting company,” and “emerging growth company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.
 
 Large accelerated filer [  ] Accelerated filer [  ]
 Non-accelerated filer [  ] Smaller reporting company [X]
  Emerging growth company [X]
 
If an emerging growth company, indicate by check mark if the registrant has elected not to use the extended transition period for complying with any new or revised financial
accounting standards provided pursuant to Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act. [X]
 
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). YES [  ] NO [X]
 
The registrant has 35,272,626 shares of common stock outstanding as of May 21, 2018.
 

 
 



 
 

PROCESSA PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.
TABLE OF CONTENTS

 
PART 1: FINANCIAL INFORMATION 3
 ITEM 1: FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 3
 ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK 26
 ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES 26
PART II. OTHER INFORMATION 28
 ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 28
 ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS 28
 ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS 28
 ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES 28
 ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES 28
 ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION 28
 ITEM 6. EXHIBITS 28
 

2



 
 
 PART 1: FINANCIAL INFORMATION
 
 ITEM 1: FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 
Processa Pharmaceuticals, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets

 
  (Unaudited)   (Audited)  
  March 31, 2018   December 31, 2017  
ASSETS         
Current Assets         

Cash and cash equivalents  $ 1,776,639  $ 2,847,429 
Due from related party   26,684   62,709 
Prepaid expenses   40,189   41,446 

Total Current Assets   1,843,512   2,951,584 
Property And Equipment         

Software   19,740   19,740 
Equipment   9,327   9,327 

Total Cost   29,067   29,067 
Less: accumulated depreciation   5,358   3,246 

Property and equipment, net   23,709   25,821 
Other Assets         

Security deposit   5,535   5,535 
Intangible asset, net of accumulated amortization   11,013,494   - 

Total Other Assets   11,019,029   5,535 
Total Assets  $ 12,886,250  $ 2,982,940 
         
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY         
Current Liabilities         

Senior convertible notes, net of debt issuance costs  $ 2,484,710  $ 2,448,570 
Accrued interest   87,293   35,693 
Accounts payable   104,880   50,686 
Due to related parties   436   436 
Accrued expenses   170,310   64,428 

Total Current Liabilities   2,847,629   2,599,813 
Non-current Liabilities         

Accrued rent liability   6,642   9,963 
Deferred tax liability   2,755,613   - 

Total Liabilities   5,609,884   2,609,776 
         
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES - SEE NOTE         
         
Stockholders’ Equity         

Common stock, par value $0.0001, 350,000,000 shares authorized; 35,272,626 issued and outstanding at
March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017   3,527   3,527 
Preferred stock, par value $0.0001, 10,000,000 shares authorized; zero shares issued and outstanding   -   - 
Additional paid-in capital   12,228,723   4,228,723 
Accumulated deficit   (4,955,884)   (3,859,086)

Total Stockholders’ Equity   7,276,366   373,164 
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity  $ 12,886,250  $ 2,982,940 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited consolidated financial statements.
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Processa Pharmaceuticals, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Operations

(Unaudited)
 

  Three Months Ended March 31,  
  2018   2017  
Operating Expenses         

Research and development costs  $ 807,661  $ 139,922 
General and administrative expenses   483,955   94,018 

Total operating expenses   1,291,616   233,940 
         
Operating Loss   (1,291,616)   (233,940)
         
Other Income (Expense)         

Interest expense   (87,740)   - 
Interest income   1,024   1,498 

Total other income (expense)   (86,716)   1,498 
         
Net Operating Loss Before Income Tax Benefit   (1,378,332)   (232,442)
         
Income Tax Benefit   281,534   - 
         
Net Loss  $ (1,096,798)  $ (232,442)
         
Net Loss per Common Share - Basic and Diluted  $ (0.03)  $ (0.01)
         
Weighted Average Common Shares Used to Compute
Net Loss Applicable to Common Shares - Basic and Diluted   35,272,626   31,745,242 
 

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited consolidated financial statements.
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Processa Pharmaceuticals, Inc.
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity

(Unaudited)
 

  Common Stock   Preferred Stock   
Additional

Paid-In   Accumulated    
  Shares   Amount   Shares   Amount  Capital   Deficit   Total  
Balance, December 31, 2017   35,272,626  $ 3,527   -  $ -  $ 4,228,723  $ (3,859,086)  $ 373,164 
Recognize the fair value of exclusive license
intangible asset acquired from CoNCERT in
exchange for 2,090,301 common shares of
Processa owned by Promet   -   -   -   -   8,000,000   -   8,000,000 
Net Loss for the Three Months Ended March
31, 2018   -   -   -   -   -   (1,096,798)   (1,096,798)
Balance, March 31, 2018   35,272,626  $ 3,527   -  $ -  $ 12,228,723  $ (4,955,884)  $ 7,276,366 
 

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited consolidated financial statements.
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Processa Pharmaceuticals, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(Unaudited)
 

  Three Months Ended March 31,  
  2018   2017  
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES         
Net Loss  $ (1,096,798)  $ (232,442)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:         

Depreciation   2,112   - 
Amortization of intangible asset   25,435   - 
Deferred income tax (benefit) expense   (281,534)   - 
Amortization of debt issuance costs   36,140   - 
Net changes in operating assets and liabilities:         

Prepaid expenses   1,257   18,147 
Vendor deposit   -   227,657 
Accrued interest   51,600   - 
Accounts payable   54,194   4,397 
Due from related parties   36,025   (95)
Accrued rent liability   -   6,642 
Accrued liabilities   102,561   (83,004)

Net cash used in operating activities   (1,069,008)   (58,698)
         
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES         

Purchase of property and equipment   -   (882)
Acquisition of intangible asset   (1,782)   - 

Net cash used in investing activities   (1,782)   (882)
         
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS   (1,070,790)   (59,580)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS         

BEGINNING OF PERIOD   2,847,429   1,071,894 
END OF PERIOD  $ 1,776,639  $ 1,012,314 

         

NON-CASH FINANCING AND INVESTING ACTIVITIES
        

Recognize exclusive license intangible asset acquired from CoNCERT  $ (11,037,147)  $ - 
Recognize deferred tax liability for basis difference for intangible asset   3,037,147     
Recognize additional paid-in capital for consideration paid from the transfer of 2,090,301 common
shares of Processa owned by Promet to CoNCERT   8,000,000   - 
Cash paid for intangible asset acquired from CoNCERT  $ -  $ - 

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited consolidated financial statements.
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Processa Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

 
Note 1 - Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
 
Business Activities and Organization
 
Company Overview
 
Processa Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (the “Company” and formerly known as “Heatwurx” ) and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Processa Therapeutics LLC (“Processa”), a Delaware
limited liability company, acquired all the net assets of a private company, including the rights to the CoNCERT Agreement mentioned below, Promet Therapeutics, LLC
(“Promet”), a Delaware limited liability company on October 4, 2017 in exchange for 31,745,242 shares (post reverse split) of the common stock of the Company which, at the
closing, constituted approximately 90% of the Company’s issued and outstanding common stock on a fully diluted basis. Immediately following the closing, there were
35,272,626 shares (post reverse split) of common stock issued and outstanding. At the closing, Processa was assigned all of the assets and operations of Promet that constituted
the operating business of Promet and Promet, which continues as an active company, received the Processa shares mentioned above and agreed to provide the Processa shares
needed if the option in the CoNCERT Agreement (see below) was exercised. Upon closing on October 4, 2017, there was a change in control of the Company to Promet. The
Company abandoned its prior business plan and adopted Promet’s business plan focused on developing drugs to treat patients that have a high unmet medical need. Subsequent
to closing and effective October 10, 2017, the Company changed its trading symbol to “PCSA” on the OTC Pink Marketplace (“OTCQB”). The Company effected a one-for-
seven reverse split of its shares in December 2017. As a result, the 2017 consolidated financial statements have been retrospectively adjusted to reflect shares outstanding after
the one-for-seven reverse split.
 
The net asset acquisition transaction was accounted for as a reverse acquisition. Prior to the acquisition, Heatwurx (subsequently renamed Processa Pharmaceuticals, Inc.) had
nominal net liabilities and operations. It was considered a non-operating public shell corporation. Therefore, Promet was considered the accounting acquirer (and legal wholly-
owned subsidiary of Heatwurx, now called Processa Pharmaceuticals, Inc.) and Heatwurx was considered the accounting acquiree (and legal acquirer). As a result, the
consolidated financial statements of the Company reflect the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of Promet for all periods presented prior to October 4,
2017 and Processa for the periods subsequent to October 4, 2017. The legal capital stock (number and type of equity interests issued) is that of Processa Pharmaceuticals, Inc.,
the legal parent, in accordance with guidance on reverse acquisitions accounted for as a capital transaction instead of a business combination (See Note 2 – Basis of Presentation
and Earnings Per Share and Note 3 – Reverse Acquisition in Item 8 of the Company’s annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on April 17, 2018).).
 
All references to the “Company” and Processa Pharmaceuticals, Inc. refer to Heatwurx, Inc., Processa Therapeutics, LLC, and the net assets acquired from Promet
Therapeutics, LLC, which were assigned at acquisition to Processa Therapeutics, LLC and Promet’s operations prior to October 4, 2017.
 
On March 19, 2018, Promet, Processa and CoNCERT Pharmaceuticals Inc. (“CoNCERT”) amended the Option and License Agreement (the “Agreement”) executed in October
2017. The Agreement was assigned to Processa and Processa exercised the exclusive option for the CTP-499 compound. The option was exercised in exchange for CoNCERT
receiving (i) $8 million of common stock of Company that was owned by Promet (or 2,090,301 shares representing 6.58% of Promet’s common stock holding or 5.93% of total
the Company’s common stock issued and outstanding), and (ii) 15% of any sublicense revenue earned by the Company for a period equivalent to the royalty term (as defined in
the Agreement) until the earliest of (a) Processa raising $8 million of gross proceeds; and (b) CoNCERT can sell its shares of Processa common stock without restrictions
pursuant to the terms of the amended Agreement. All other terms of the Agreement remain unchanged. As a result, the Company recognized an intangible asset and additional
paid-in capital in the amount of $8 million resulting from Promet satisfying Processa’s liability to CoNCERT. There was no change in the total shares issued and outstanding,
however, Promet’s controlling interest in Processa was reduced from 90% to 84%.
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Processa Pharmaceuticals, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Unaudited)
 
Description of Business
 
Processa is an emerging pharmaceutical company focused on the clinical development of drug products that are intended to improve the survival and/or quality of life for
patients who have a high unmet medical need or who have no alternative treatment. Within this group of pharmaceutical products, we currently are developing one product for
two indications (i.e., the use of a drug to treat a particular disease) and searching for additional products for our portfolio.
 
Processa’s lead product, PCS-499 (previously known as CTP-499), is an oral tablet that is an analog of an active metabolite of an already approved FDA drug. The advantage of
PCS-499 is that it potentially may work in many conditions because it has multiple pharmacological targets that it affects that are important in the treatment of these conditions.
Based on its pharmacological activity, Processa has identified other unmet medical need conditions where the use of PCS-499 may result in clinical efficacy. These include
Necrobiosis Lipoidica (NL) and Radiation-Induced Fibrosis (RIF) in head and neck cancer patients. Processa has met with the FDA on the NL condition and has developed a
strategy for moving the program for NL forward starting with a Phase 2 clinical trial in NL patients in late 2018. Processa will meet with the FDA to further define the program
for use of PCS-499 for the RIF condition in the next few months.
 
Processa is looking to acquire additional drug candidates to help patients who have an unmet medical need. Processa has evaluated over 50 potential assets for acquisition and
are continuing to evaluate new assets to acquire.
 
Our operations are performed in the state of Maryland and are still in the organizational and research and development phase of operations. As a result, we have a limited
operating history and only a preliminary business plan from which investors may evaluate our future prospects. We have not had any sources of revenue from inception (August
31, 2015) through March 31, 2018 and have a history of operating losses from operations. Our ability to generate meaningful revenue from any products in the United States
depends on obtaining FDA authorization. Even if our products are authorized and approved by the FDA, we must still meet the challenges of successful marketing, distribution
and consumer acceptance.
 
As of March 31, 2018, the Company had an accumulated deficit of approximately $5.0 million incurred since inception and expects to incur substantial operating losses for the
foreseeable future. Our current capital is insufficient to fully fund our total business plan and the development of our planned product candidates for a period of one-year from
the date these consolidated financial statements are available to be issued. Our ability to achieve revenue-generating operations and, ultimately, achieve profitability will depend
on whether we can obtain additional capital when we need it, complete the development of our technology, receive regulatory approval of our planned product candidates and
any stand along development planned product candidates into new or existing drugs which can be successfully commercialized. There can be no assurance that we will ever
generate revenues or achieve profitability. These risks and other factors could have a material adverse effect on the Company and raise substantial doubt about our ability to
continue as a going concern.
 
Basis of Presentation
 
The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with United States generally accepted accounting principles (“U.S. GAAP”)
for interim financial information and with the instructions of the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) on Form 10-Q and Rule 10-01 of Regulation S-X. Accordingly,
they do not include all of the information and disclosures required by U.S. GAAP for complete financial statements. All material intercompany accounts and transactions have
been eliminated in consolidation. In the opinion of management, the accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements include all adjustments necessary, which are of
a normal and recurring nature, for the fair presentation of the Company’s financial position and of the results of operations and cash flows for the periods presented. These
consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the audited financial statements and notes thereto included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2017, as filed with the SEC on April 17, 2018. The results of operations for the interim period shown in this report are not necessarily
indicative of the results that may be expected for any other interim period or for the full year.
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Processa Pharmaceuticals, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Unaudited)
 
As a result of the modification of the Option and License Agreement with CoNCERT and the acquisition of an exclusive license intangible asset used in research and
development activities described above, the Company adopted a new intangible asset policy and disclosure (See Note 1 – Intangible Assets and Note 2) and recognized a
deferred tax liability for the acquired temporary difference between the financial reporting basis and the tax basis of the intangible asset (See Note 5).
 
Going Concern and Management’s Plan
 
The Company’s consolidated financial statements are prepared using U.S. GAAP and are based on the assumption that the Company will continue as a going concern, which
contemplates the realization of assets and liquidation of liabilities in the normal course of business. The Company faces certain risks and uncertainties that are present in many
emerging growth companies regarding product development and commercialization, limited working capital, recurring losses and negative cash flow from operations, future
profitability, ability to obtain future capital, protection of patents, technologies and property rights, competition, rapid technological change, navigating the domestic and major
foreign markets’ regulatory and clinical environment, recruiting and retaining key personnel, dependence on third party manufacturing organizations, third party collaboration
and licensing agreements, lack of sales and marketing activities and no customers or pharmaceutical products to sell or distribute. These risks and other factors raise substantial
doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern.
 
The Company has relied exclusively on private placements with a small group of accredited investors to finance its business and operations. We do not have any prospective
arrangements or credit facilities as a source of future funds. The Company has had no revenue since inception on August 31, 2015. The Company does not currently have any
revenue under contract nor does it have any immediate sales prospects. As of March 31, 2018, the Company had an accumulated deficit of approximately $5.0 million incurred
since inception. For the three months ended March 31, 2018, the Company incurred a net loss from continuing operations of approximately $1.1 million and used approximately
$1.1 million in net cash from operating activities from continuing operations. The Company had total cash and cash equivalents of approximately $1.8 million as of March 31,
2018.
 
No additional sources of capital have been obtained or committed through the date these consolidated financial statements were available to be issued. We expect our operating
costs to be substantial as we incur costs related to the clinical trials for our product candidates and that we will operate at a loss for the foreseeable future.
 
We are in the process of raising additional funds by potentially selling additional Senior Convertible Notes, convertible loans or other securities. However, no assurance can be
given that we will be successful in raising adequate funds needed. If we are unable to raise additional capital when required or on acceptable terms, we may have to significantly
delay, scale back or discontinue the development or commercialization of one or more of our product candidates, restrict our operations or obtain funds by entering into
agreements on unattractive terms, which would likely have a material adverse effect on our business, stock price and our relationships with third parties with whom we have
business relationships, at least until additional funding is obtained.
 
Uncertainty concerning our ability to continue as a going concern may hinder our ability to obtain future financing, as well as adversely affect our collaborative drug
development relationships. Continued operations and our ability to continue as a going concern are dependent on our ability to obtain additional funding in the near future and
thereafter, and no assurances can be given that such funding will be available at all or will be available in sufficient amounts or on reasonable terms. Without additional funds
from debt or equity financing, sales of assets, sales or out-licenses of intellectual property or technologies, or other transactions yielding funds, we will rapidly exhaust our
resources and will be unable to continue operations. Absent additional funding, we believe that our cash and cash equivalents will not be sufficient to fund our operations for a
period of one year or more after the date that these consolidated financial statements are available to be issued based on the timing and amount of our projected net loss from
continuing operations and cash to be used in operating activities during that period of time.
 
As a result, substantial doubt exists about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that these consolidated financial statements are
available to be issued. The accompanying consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments to reflect the possible future effects on the recoverability and
classification of recorded assets, or the amounts and classification of liabilities that might be different should the Company be unable to continue as a going concern based on
the outcome of these uncertainties described above.
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Processa Pharmaceuticals, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Unaudited)
 
Use of Estimates
 
The preparation of the accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts (including assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses) and related disclosures, including contingent assets and liabilities. Estimates have been
prepared on the basis of the most current and best available information. However, actual results could differ materially from those estimates.

 
Cash and Cash Equivalents
 
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand and money market funds. The Company considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity at the date of purchase of three
months or less to be cash equivalents. Money market funds were $961,193 and $1,300,815 at March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively.
 
Intangible Assets
 
Intangible assets acquired individually or with a group of other assets from others (other than in a business combination) are recognized at cost, including transaction costs, and
allocated to the individual assets acquired based on relative fair values and no goodwill is recognized. Cost is measured based on cash consideration paid. If consideration given
is in the form of non-cash assets, liabilities incurred, or equity interests issued, measurement of cost is based on either the fair value of the consideration given or the fair value
of the assets (or net assets) acquired, whichever is more clearly evident and more reliably measurable. Costs of internally developing, maintaining or restoring intangible assets
that are not specifically identifiable, have indeterminate lives or are inherent in a continuing business are expensed as incurred.
 
Intangible assets purchased from others for use in research and development activities and that have alternative future uses (in research and development projects or otherwise)
are capitalized in accordance with ASC Topic 350, Intangibles – Goodwill and Other and those that have no alternative future uses (in research and development projects or
otherwise) and therefore no separate economic value are research and development costs expensed as incurred. Amortization of intangibles used in research and development
activities is a research and development cost.
 
Intangibles with a finite useful life are amortized and those with an indefinite useful life are not amortized. The useful life is the best estimate of the period over which the asset
is expected to contribute directly or indirectly to the future cash flows of the Company. The useful life is based on the duration of the expected use of the asset by the Company
and the legal, regulatory or contractual provisions that constrain the useful life and future cash flows of the asset, including regulatory acceptance and approval, obsolescence,
demand, competition and other economic factors. If an income approach is used to measure the fair value of an intangible asset, the Company considers the period of expected
cash flows used to measure the fair value of the intangible asset, adjusted as appropriate for Company-specific factors discussed above, to determine the useful life for
amortization purposes. If no regulatory, contractual, competitive, economic or other factors limit the useful life of the intangible to the Company, the useful life is considered
indefinite.
 
Intangibles with a finite useful life are amortized on the straight-line method unless the pattern in which the economic benefits of the intangible asset are consumed or used up
are reliably determinable. The Company evaluates the remaining useful life of intangible assets each reporting period to determine whether any revision to the remaining useful
life is required. If the remaining useful life is changed, the remaining carrying amount of the intangible asset will be amortized prospectively over the revised remaining useful
life.
 
Intangibles with an indefinite useful life are not amortized until its useful life is determined to be no longer indefinite. If the useful life is determined to be finite, the intangible
is tested for impairment and the carrying amount is amortized over the remaining useful life in accordance with intangibles subject to amortization. Indefinite-lived intangibles
are tested for impairment annually and more frequently if events or circumstances indicate that it is more-likely-than-not that the asset is impaired.
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Processa Pharmaceuticals, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Unaudited)
 
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and Intangibles Other Than Goodwill
 
The Company accounts for the impairment of long-lived assets in accordance with ASC 360, Property, Plant and Equipment and ASC 350, Intangibles – Goodwill and Other
which requires that long-lived assets and certain identifiable intangibles be reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to expected future
undiscounted net cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized is measured as the amount by
which the carrying amounts of the assets exceed the fair value of the assets based on the present value of the expected future cash flows associated with the use of the asset.
Assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell. Based on management’s evaluation, there was no impairment loss
recorded for the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.
 
Fair Value Measurements and Disclosure
 
The Company applies ASC 820, “Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures,” which expands disclosures for assets and liabilities that are measured and reported at fair value
on a recurring basis. Fair value is defined as an exit price, representing the amount that would be received upon the sale of an asset or payment to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants.
 
Fair value is a market-based measurement that is determined based on assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability. A three-tier fair value
hierarchy is used to prioritize the inputs in measuring fair value as follows:
 
Level 1 – Quoted market prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the reporting entity has the ability to access at the measurement date.
 
Level 2 – Quoted market prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, or other
inputs that are observable, either directly or indirectly. Fair value determined through the use of models or other valuation methodologies.
 
Level 3 – Significant unobservable inputs for assets or liabilities that cannot be corroborated by market data. Fair value is determined by the reporting entity’s own assumptions
utilizing the best information available and includes situations where there is little market activity for the asset or liability.
 
The asset’s or liability’s fair value measurement within the fair value hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. The
Company’s policy is to recognize transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy in the period the event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer. There were no
transfers into or out of Level 1, 2, or 3 during the periods presented.
 
Net Income (Loss) per Share
 
The Company computes basic and diluted earnings per share amounts pursuant to ASC 260-10-45. Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing net income (loss) available
to common shareholders, by the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the period, excluding the effects of any potentially dilutive securities.
Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing net income (loss) available to common shareholders by the diluted weighted average number of shares of common stock
during the period. The diluted weighted average number of common shares outstanding is the basic weighted number of shares adjusted for any potentially diluted debt or
equity and options. The diluted computation does not assume conversion, exercise or contingent exercise of securities since that would have an anti-dilutive effect on earnings
(loss) during the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017.
 
Subsequent Events
 
The Company has evaluated subsequent events and transactions for potential recognition or disclosure through May18, 2018, the date the financial statements were available to
be issued, in accordance with ASC 855-10-50. Refer to Note 9 below for further information.
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Processa Pharmaceuticals, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Unaudited)
 
Recent Accounting Pronouncements
 
From time to time, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) or other standard setting bodies issue new accounting pronouncements. Updates to the FASB
Accounting Standards Codification are communicated through issuance of an Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”). The Company has implemented all new accounting
pronouncements that are in effect and that may impact its financial statements. It has evaluated recently issued accounting pronouncements and determined that there was no
material impact on its financial position or results of operations.

 
From May 2014 through March 31, 2018, the FASB issued several ASUs related to ASU 2014-09, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606). The new guidance is
effective for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2017, although entities may adopt one year earlier if they choose. The two permitted transition methods
under the new standard are the full retrospective method, in which case the standard would be applied to each prior reporting period presented and the cumulative effect of
applying the standard would be recognized at the earliest period shown, or the modified retrospective method, in which case the cumulative effect of applying the standard
would be recognized at the date of initial application. The Company is currently in the pre-revenue stages of operations; therefore, we do not currently anticipate there would be
any change to timing or method of recognizing revenue. As such, the adoption of this standard did not have a material impact on our results of operations, financial condition or
cash flows.
 
In February 2016 through March 31, 2018, the FASB issued several ASUs related to ASU-2016-02, “Leases (Topic 842).” The guidance requires that a lessee recognize in the
statement of financial position a liability to make lease payments (the lease liability) and a right of use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term.
For operating leases: the right-of-use asset and a lease liability will be initially measured at the present value of the lease payments, in the statement of financial position; a
single lease cost will be recognized, calculated so that the cost of the lease is allocated over the lease term on a generally straight-line basis; and all cash payments will be
classified within operating activities in the statement of cash flows. The amendments in Topic 842 are effective for the Company beginning January 1, 2019. The Company’s
office lease expires September 30, 2019. Management is currently evaluating the impact of adopting the new guidance on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
 
Note 2 – Intangible Asset
 
Intangible assets consist of the capitalized costs of $11,038,929, including transaction costs of $1,782, associated with the exercise of the option to acquire the exclusive license
from CoNCERT related to patent rights and know-how to develop and commercialize compounds and products for CTP-499 (also known as the Company’s lead product PCS-
499) and each metabolite thereof and the related income tax effects. The capitalized costs include $3,037,147 associated with the initial recognition of an offsetting deferred tax
liability related to the acquired temporary difference for an asset purchased that is not a business combination and has a tax basis of $1,782 in accordance with ASC 740-10-25-
51 Income Taxes. In accordance with ASC Topic 730, Research and Development, the Company capitalized the costs of acquiring the exclusive license rights to CTP-499 as the
exclusive license rights represent intangible assets to be used in research and development activities that have future alternative uses.
 
The negotiation of the modification to the Agreement was finalized in mid-February 2018 and the legal documents were executed and the option was exercised on March 19,
2018 in exchange for CoNCERT receiving (i) $8 million of common stock of Processa that was owned by Promet (or 2,090,301 shares representing 6.58% of Promet’s common
stock holding or 5.93% of total Processa common stock issued and outstanding), and (ii) 15% of any sublicense revenue earned by Processa for a period equivalent to the royalty
term (as defined in the Agreement) until the earliest to occur of (a) Processa raising $8 million of gross proceeds; and (b) CoNCERT can sell its shares of Processa common
stock without restrictions pursuant to the terms of the amended Agreement. All other terms of the Agreement remained unchanged. The license agreement was assigned to and
deemed to have been exercised by the Company. As a result of the transaction, the Company recognized an intangible asset for the fair value of the common stock consideration
paid of $8 million with an offsetting amount in additional paid-in capital resulting from Promet satisfying Processa’s liability to CoNCERT.
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(Unaudited)
 
The Company estimated the fair value of the common stock issued based on the market approach and CoNCERT’s requirement to receive shares valued at $8 million. The
market approach was based on the final negotiated number of shares of stock determined on a volume weighted average price of Processa common stock quoted on the OTCQB
(principal market) over a 45 day period preceding the mid-February 2018 finalized negotiation of the modification to the option and license agreement with CoNCERT, an
unrelated third party, for the exclusive license rights to CTP-499 However, Processa has less than 300 shareholders, the volume of shares trading for Processa’s common stock
is not significant and the OTCQB is not a national exchange, therefore the volume weighted average price quotes for the Processa stock are from markets that are not active and
therefore are Level 2 inputs. The total cost recognized for the exclusive license acquired represents the allocated fair value related to the stock transferred to CoNCERT plus the
recognition of the deferred tax liability related to the acquired temporary difference and the transaction costs incurred to complete the transaction as discussed above.
 
Intangible assets consist of the following:
 
  March 31, 2018   March 31, 2017  
Gross intangible assets         
Exclusive license rights to CTP-499  $ 11,038,929  $ - 
Less: Accumulated amortization   (25,435)   - 
Total intangible assets, net  $ 11,013,494  $ - 
 
Amortization expense was $25,435 and $0 for the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. The weighted average amortization period for the intangible asset
is 14 years based on the average remaining patent lives for CTP-499 and the estimated royalty period for a fully paid-up license under the terms of the license agreement.
Amortization expense is included within research and development expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. As of March 31, 2018, the estimated
future amortization expense each year for the next five years and annual periods thereafter until fully amortized amounts to $788,495 per year.
 
Note 3 – Senior Convertible Notes
 
As of October 4, 2017, certain entities affiliated with current shareholders had purchased $1.25 million of our senior secured convertible notes (“Senior Notes”) in a bridge
financing undertaken by us to support the Processa operations. On November 21, 2017, additional third party accredited investors contributed $1.33 million in financing
proceeds. As of March 31, 2018, $2.58 million of Senior Notes were issued and outstanding.
 
Principal and interest under each Senior Note is due on the earlier of (i) the mandatory and automatic conversion of the Senior Note into the next Private Investment in Public
Equity (“PIPE”) financing we undertake, provided the PIPE financing yields minimum gross proceeds and a pre-money valuation as defined in the financing agreement or (ii)
the one-year anniversary of that Senior Note (Maturity Date). The Senior Notes bear interest at 8% per year and are payable in kind (in common stock). At the Maturity Date,
the outstanding principal and accrued interest on the Senior Note will be automatically converted into shares of common stock of the Company equal to the lesser of (i) a pre-
money valuation or (ii) any adjusted price resulting from the application of down round pricing during the anti-dilution period through December 31, 2018 as defined in the
financing agreement. There can be no assurance that we will be successful in achieving the financing levels targeted under the Senior Convertible Notes or the PIPE financing.
 
Holders of Senior Notes (a) may elect to receive 110% of principal plus accrued interest in the event there is a change of control prior to conversation of the Senior Notes, (b)
are entitled to full ratchet anti-dilution protection in event of any sale of securities at a net consideration per share that is less than the applicable conversion price per share to
the holder, (c) are entitled to certain registration rights for the securities underlying the Senior Notes and (d) have been granted certain preemptive rights pro rata to their
respective interests through December 31, 2018. The Senior Notes can be prepaid by the Company at any time following the date of issuance with seven days prior written
notice to the note holder.
 

13



 
 

Processa Pharmaceuticals, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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The Senior Notes are secured by a security interest in the assets of the Company and contain negative covenants that do not permit the Company to incur additional indebtedness
or liens on property or assets owned, repurchase common stock, pay dividends, or enter into any transaction with affiliates of the Company that would require disclosure in a
public filing with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Upon an event of default, the outstanding principal amount of the Senior Notes, plus accrued but unpaid interest and
other amounts owing in respect thereof through the date of acceleration, shall become immediately due and payable in cash at the holder’s election, if not cured within the cure
period.
 
The Company retained Boustead Securities Ltd. (“Boustead”), a registered broker-dealer, as its exclusive financial adviser and has agreed to pay Boustead (i) six percent (6%)
of gross proceeds received by the Company and (ii) warrants to purchase securities in the amount of three percent (3%) of the equity issued or issuable in connection with the
Senior Notes bridge financing. These warrants will be issued upon achieving certain financing levels under the next PIPE financing we undertake. No additional funds have
been raised since the November 21, 2017 financing proceeds. As a result, no warrants are issuable, and none have been issued as of March 31, 2018.
 
The Company incurred $154,800 in debt issuance costs on the Senior Notes with Boustead, which were reported as a reduction of the carrying amount of the Senior Convertible
Notes on the face of the consolidated balance sheets. The debt issuance costs are amortized to interest expense using the interest method over the term of the Senior Convertible
Notes. The effective interest rate on the Senior Notes was 7.72%before debt issuance costs since no payments of interest are due until maturity and 13.96%including the debt
issuance costs based on the repayment terms of the Senior Notes.
 
Debt and accrued interest at March 31, 2018 and interest expense for the three months ended March 31, 2018 are as follows:
 
     Unamortized           
  Senior   Debt   Senior        
  Convertible   Issuance   Convertible   Accrued   Interest  
  Notes   Costs   Notes, Net   Interest   Expense  
Balance, December 31, 2017  $ 2,580,000  $ (131,430)  $ 2,448,570  $ 35,693  $ 59,063 
Accrued interest   -   -   -   51,600   51,600 
Amortize debt issuance costs   -   36,140   36,140   -   36,140 
Balance, March 31, 2018   2,580,000   (95,290)   2,484,710   87,293  $ 87,740 
Current portion   (2,580,000)   95,290   (2,484,710)   (87,293)     
Long-term portion  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -     
 
Note 4 – Stockholders’ Equity
 
On March 19, 2018, Promet, Processa and CoNCERT amended the Agreement executed in October 2017. The Agreement was assigned to Processa and Processa exercised the
exclusive option for the CTP-499 compound (see Note 1 – Company Overview and Note 2 – Intangible Asset) in exchange for CoNCERT receiving, in part, $8 million of
common stock of the Company that was owned directly by Promet (or 2,090,301 shares at $3.83 per share representing 6.58% of Promet’s common stock holding or 5.93% of
total the Company’s common stock issued and outstanding) in satisfaction of the obligation due for the exclusive license for CTP-499 acquired by Processa. There was no
change in the total shares issued and outstanding of 35,272,626, however, Promet’s controlling interest was reduced from 90% to 84%. Promet contributed the payment of the
obligation due for the exclusive license to the Company without consideration paid to them. As a result of the transaction, the Company recognized an exclusive license
intangible asset with a fair value of $8 million and an offsetting increase in additional paid-in capital resulting from Promet satisfying Processa’s liability to CoNCERT.
 
There were no changes in or issuances of preferred stock, stock options or warrants from December 31, 2017.
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Note 5 – Income Taxes
 
The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with ASC Topic 740, Income Taxes.  Deferred income taxes are recorded for the expected tax consequences of
temporary differences between the tax basis of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and amounts recognized for income tax purposes. The Company records a
valuation allowance to reduce the Company’s deferred tax assets to the amount of future tax benefit that is more likely than not to be realized.
 
As required under ASC 740-270, Interim Financial Reporting, the Company has estimated its annual effective tax rate for the full fiscal year and applied that rate to its year-to-
date consolidated pre-tax ordinary loss before income taxes in determining its benefit for income taxes. The Company recorded a benefit for income taxes of approximately
$282,000 and $0 for the three-month period ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.
 
As of March 31, 2018, and December 31, 2017, the Company maintained a valuation allowance equal to the full recorded amount of the Company’s net deferred tax assets
related to intangible start-up costs since it is more likely than not that such benefits will not be realized. The valuation allowance is reviewed quarterly and is maintained until
sufficient positive evidence exists to support its reversal.
 
A deferred tax liability was recorded when CoNCERT sold its license and “Know-How” to Processa for stock in an Internal Revenue Code Section 351 transaction on March
19, 2018 (see Note 1 – Company Overview and Note 2 – Intangible Asset). A Section 351 transaction treats the acquisition of the license and Know-How for stock as a tax-free
exchange. As a result, under ASC 740-10-25-51 Income Taxes, Processa recorded a deferred tax liability of $3,037,147 for the acquired temporary difference between the
financial reporting basis of approximately $11,038,929 and the tax basis of approximately $1,782. The deferred tax liability may be offset by the deferred tax assets resulting
from 2017 and 2018 taxable net operating losses. Thus, a partial release of valuation allowance occurred in Q1 2018 as it relates to the NOL. There remains a valuation
allowance on intangible start-up costs. Under ACS 740-270 Income Taxes – Interim Reporting, the Company is required to project its 2018 federal and state effective income
tax rate and apply it to the March 31, 2018 operating loss before income taxes. Based on the projection, the Company expects to recognize the tax benefit from the 2017 net
operating loss carryover and the projected 2018 taxable loss, which resulted in the recognition of a deferred tax benefit shown in the consolidated statements of operations for
2018.
 
As discussed in Note 2 – Income Taxes in the consolidated financial statements included in Item 8 of the 2017 Form 10-K filed with the SEC on April 17, 2018, the historical
information presented in the consolidated financial statements prior to October 4, 2017 is that of Promet in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 805-
40-45, Business Combinations – Reverse Acquisitions. Prior to the closing of the asset purchase transaction on October 4, 2017, Promet was treated as a partnership for federal
income tax purposes and thus was not subject to income tax at the entity level. Therefore, no provision or liability for income taxes has been included in these consolidated
financial statements through the date of the asset purchase on October 4, 2017.
 
The Company expects to be in an overall taxable loss position for 2018. However, the Company expects to recognize a deferred tax benefit in 2018 to the extent the 2017 net
operating loss carryover and the 2018 net operating losses can be used to offset the deferred tax liability related to the intangible asset. No current income tax expense is
expected for the foreseeable future as the Company expects to generate taxable net operating losses.
 
Note 6 – Net Loss per Share of Common Stock
 
The Company has preferred stock authorized but no preferred stock issued and outstanding at March 31, 2018 and 2017. There were no outstanding options or warrants issued
at March 31, 2018 and 2017.
 
The Company has reported a loss from continuing operations and a loss from continuing operations available to common stockholders for all periods presented. As a result,
there is no assumed conversion, exercise or contingent exercise of potential common shares included in the computation of the diluted per share amounts since it would have an
antidilutive effect, therefore, basic and diluted loss per share are computed by dividing net loss applicable to common stockholders by the weighted-average number of shares of
common stock outstanding.
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The weighted-average shares of common stock used in calculating basic and diluted loss per share for the 2018 calculation uses the total shares issued and outstanding of
35,272,626. There has been no change in total shares issued and outstanding since December 31, 2017. The weighted-average shares of common stock used in calculating basic
and diluted loss per share for the 2017 calculation uses the 31,745,242 shares issued to Promet in the asset purchase transaction for the period from January 1, 2017 through the
acquisition date of October 4, 2017 in accordance with ASC 805-40-45, Business Combinations – Reverse Acquisitions. All shares were restated for the one-for-seven reverse
split.
 
The calculation of the numerator and denominator for basic and diluted net loss per common share is shown in the following table.
 

  For the three months ended  
  March 31,  
  2018   2017  
       
Net loss from continuing operations applicable to common stockholders - basic and diluted  $ (1,096,798)  $ (232,442)
         
Total common shares issued and outstanding   35,272,626   31,745,242 
         
Weighted average shares outstanding used in calculating net loss per common share - basic and
diluted   35,272,626   31,745,242 
         
Net loss per common share - basic and diluted  $ (0.03)  $ (0.01)

 
Note 7 – Related Party Transactions
 
A shareholder, Corlyst, LLC, reimburses the Company for shared costs related to payroll, health care insurance and rent based on actual costs incurred and recognized as a
reduction of the general and administrative operating expenses being reimbursed in the Company’s consolidated statements of operations. The reimbursed amounts totaled
$26,684 and $29,430 for the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. The receivable balances due from Corlyst at March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017
were $26,684 and $62,709, respectively.
 
During 2016 and 2017, Corlyst paid certain operating expenses on behalf of the Company and the Company reimbursed Corlyst based on actual costs incurred at later dates.
The accounts payable amounts due to Corlyst at March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017 were $336 and $336, respectively. In addition, there was $100 due to an officer
included in due to related parties as of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017.
 
A director of the Company is the manager of the JMW Fund, LLC, the San Gabriel Fund, LLC, and the Richland Fund, LLC, collectively known as the “Funds”. In addition, the
Funds own $1 million in Senior Convertible Notes at March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017.
 
Entities affiliated with the Chairman of the Board of Directors, Chief Executive Officer and Interim Chief Financial Officer of the Company own $250,000 in Senior
Convertible Notes at March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017.
 
Note 8 – Commitments and Contingencies
 
Purchase Obligations
 
The Company enters into contracts in the normal course of business with contract research organizations and subcontractors to further develop its products. The contracts are
cancellable, with varying provisions regarding termination. If a contract with a specific vendor were to be terminated, the Company would only be obligated for products or
services that it received as of the effective date of the termination and any applicable cancellation fees. The Company had purchase obligations of approximately $1,006,000 and
$896,000 at March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively.
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Cybersecurity Fraud
 
In January 2018, the Company incurred a loss of $144,200 due to fraud from a cybersecurity breach. As a result, we have implemented certain review and approval procedures
internally and with our banks; our technology consultants have implemented system changes; and, we reported the fraud to our banks and the Federal Bureau of Investigation
Cyber Crimes Unit. The Company does not have insurance coverage against the type of fraud that occurred, therefore, recovery of the loss is remote. While we are taking steps
to prevent such an event from reoccurring, we cannot provide assurance that similar issues will not reoccur. Failure of our control systems to prevent or detect and correct errors
or fraud could have a material and adverse effect on our financial condition. The loss is included in general and administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of
operations for the three months ended March 31, 2018.
 
Note 9 – Subsequent Events
 

On May 15, 2018 Processa Pharmaceuticals (the “Company”) entered into Subscription and Purchase Agreements (the “Purchase Agreements”) with certain
accredited investors and conducted a closing pursuant to which the Company sold 1,112,656 shares of the Company’s Common Stock, par value $0.001 per share (the
“Common Stock”), at a purchase price of $2.27 per share. In addition, each investor received a warrant to purchase one share of Common Stock for each Common Stock
purchased by such investor at an exercise price equal to $2.724, subject to adjustment thereunder. The closing is the initial closing (the “Initial Closing”) of the Company’s
previously announced private placement (the “Private Placement”) of up to $8 million of Common Stock (the Maximum Offering Amount”).

 
The Company received total gross proceeds of approximately $2.5 million from the Initial Closing, prior to deducting placement agent fees and estimated expenses

payable by the Company associated with the Initial Closing. The Company currently intends to use the proceeds of the Private Placement to fund research and development of
its lead product candidate, PCS-499, including clinical trial activities, and for general corporate purposes. Pursuant to the Purchase Agreements, the Company may periodically
conduct additional closings until the earlier of June 29, 2018 or the Company has sold the Maximum Offering Amount.

 
The Securities were sold in a private placement pursuant to exemptions from the registration requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities

Act”), afforded by Rule 506 of Regulation D promulgated thereunder.
 
Boustead Securities acted as placement agent The placement agent received approximately $128,056 in connection with the Initial Closing and a Placement Agent

Warrant to purchase up to 33,380 shares of Common Stock at an exercise price equal to $2.724.
 

Anti-Dilution Protection
 

The Common Stock, but not the Warrants, will have full ratchet anti-dilution protection rather than weighted-average anti-dilution protection. Except as provided, until
the Company has issued equity securities or securities convertible into equity securities for a total of an additional $20.0 million in cash or assets, including the proceeds from
the exercise of the Warrants issued in the Offering, in the event the Company issues additional equity securities or securities convertible into equity securities at a purchase price
less than $2.27 per share of Common Stock, the Purchase Price shall be adjusted and new shares of Common Stock issued as if the Purchase Price was such lower amount (or,
if such additional securities are issued without consideration, to a price equal to $0.01 per share).
 

The following issuances shall not trigger anti-dilution adjustment: (i) shares of Common Stock issued in the Private Placement and securities issuable upon exercise of
the Warrants; (ii) securities issued upon the conversion of any outstanding debenture, warrant, option, or other convertible security; (iii) Common Stock issuable upon a stock
split, stock dividend, or any subdivision of shares of Common Stock, provided that such securities have not been amended since the date of the Agreement to increase the
number of such securities or to decrease the exercise price, exchange price or conversation price of such securities (other than in connection with stock splits or combinations) or
to extend the term of such securities; (iv) shares of Common Stock (or options to purchase such shares of Common Stock) issued or issuable to employees or directors of, or
consultants to, the Company pursuant to any plan approved by the Company’s Board of Directors and (v) securities issued pursuant to acquisitions or strategic transactions
approved by a majority of the disinterested directors of the Company, provided that such issuance shall only be to a person (or to the equity holders of a person) which is, itself
or through its subsidiaries, believed by the Company to be an operating company or an owner of an asset in a business synergistic with the business of the Company.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

 
SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

 
This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q contains forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements give our current expectations or forecasts of future events. You

can identify these statements by the fact that they do not relate strictly to historical or current facts. You can find many (but not all) of these statements by looking for words
such as “approximates,” “believes,” “hopes,” “expects,” “anticipates,” “estimates,” “projects,” “intends,” “plans,” “would,” “should,” “could,” “may” or other similar
expressions in this report on Form 10-Q. These statements may be found under the section of this report on Form 10-Q captioned “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” as well as in this report on Form 10-Q generally. In particular, these include statements relating to future actions, prospective
products, applications, customers, technologies, future performance or results of anticipated products, expenses, and financial results. These forward-looking statements are
subject to certain risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from our historical experience and our present expectations or projections. Factors
that could cause actual results to differ from those discussed in the forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to:

 
 ● our limited operating history, limited cash and history of losses;
   
 ● our ability to achieve profitability;
   
 ● our ability to secure required FDA or other governmental approvals for our product candidates and the breadth of the indication sought;
   
 ● the impact of competitive or alternative products, technologies and pricing;
   
 ● whether we are successful in developing and commercializing our technology, including through licensing;
   
 ● the adequacy of protections afforded to us and/or our licensor by the anticipated patents that we own or license and the cost to us of maintaining, enforcing and defending

those patents;
   
 ● our and our licensor’s ability to protect non-patented intellectual property rights;
   
 ● our exposure to and ability to defend third-party claims and challenges to our and our licensor’s anticipated patents and other intellectual property rights;
   
 ● our ability to obtain adequate financing to fund our business operations in the future;
   
 ● our ability to continue as a going concern; and
   
 ● other factors discussed in the “Risk Factors” section of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2017, as filed with the SEC (as amended) on

April 17, 2018.
 
The forward-looking statements are based upon management’s beliefs and assumptions and are made as of the date of this report on Form 10-Q. We undertake no obligation to
publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements included in this report on Form 10-Q or to update the reasons why actual results could differ from those contained in
such statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise, except to the extent required by federal securities laws. Actual future results may vary
materially as a result of various factors, including, without limitation, the risks disclosed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2017, as filed
with the SEC (as amended) on April 17, 2018. In light of these risks and uncertainties, we cannot assure you that the forward-looking statements contained in this report on
Form 10-Q will in fact occur. You should not place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements.

 
This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q also contains estimates, projections and other information concerning our industry, our business, and the markets for certain diseases,
including data regarding the estimated size of those markets. Information that is based on estimates, forecasts, projections, market research or similar methodologies is
inherently subject to uncertainties and actual events or circumstances may differ materially from events and circumstances reflected in this information. Unless otherwise
expressly stated, we obtained this industry, business, market, and other data from reports, research surveys, studies, and similar data prepared by market research firms and
other third parties, industry, medical and general publications, government data, and similar sources.
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In this Form 10-Q, “we,” “us” and “our” refer to Processa Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and its subsidiary.
 
Overview
 
Processa is an emerging pharmaceutical company focused on the clinical development of drug products that are intended to improve the survival and/or quality of life for
patients who have a high unmet medical need. Within this group of pharmaceutical products, we currently are developing one product for two indications (i.e., the use of a drug
to treat a particular disease) and searching for additional products for our portfolio. We have evaluated over 50 potential new assets and are continuing to evaluate potential new
assets to acquire.
 
On March 19, 2018, Promet, Processa and CoNCERT Pharmaceuticals Inc. (“CoNCERT”) amended the Option and License Agreement (the “Agreement”) executed in October
2017. The Agreement was assigned to Processa and Processa exercised the exclusive option for the CTP-499 compound. The option was exercised in exchange for CoNCERT
receiving (i) $8 million of common stock of Company that was owned by Promet (or 2,090,301 shares representing 6.58% of Promet’s common stock holding or 5.93% of total
the Company’s common stock issued and outstanding), and (ii) 15% of any sublicense revenue earned by the Company for a period equivalent to the royalty term (as defined in
the Agreement) until the earliest of (a) Processa raising $8 million of gross proceeds; and (b) CoNCERT can sell its shares of Processa common stock without restrictions
pursuant to the terms of the amended Agreement. All other terms of the Agreement remain unchanged. As a result, the Company recognized an intangible asset and additional
paid-in capital in the amount of $8 million resulting from Promet satisfying Processa’s liability to CoNCERT. There was no change in the total shares issued and outstanding,
however, Promet’s controlling interest in Processa was reduced from 90% to 84%.
 
Going Concern and Management’s Plan
 
The Company’s consolidated financial statements are prepared using U.S. GAAP and are based on the assumption that the Company will continue as a going concern, which
contemplates the realization of assets and liquidation of liabilities in the normal course of business. The Company faces certain risks and uncertainties that are present in many
emerging growth companies regarding product development and commercialization, limited working capital, recurring losses and negative cash flow from operations, future
profitability, ability to obtain future capital, protection of patents, technologies and property rights, competition, rapid technological change, navigating the domestic and major
foreign markets’ regulatory and clinical environment, recruiting and retaining key personnel, dependence on third party manufacturing organizations, third party collaboration
and licensing agreements, lack of sales and marketing activities and no customers or pharmaceutical products to sell or distribute. These risks and other factors raise substantial
doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern.
 
The Company has relied exclusively on private placements with a small group of accredited investors to finance its business and operations. We do not have any credit facilities
as a source of future funds. The Company has had no revenue since inception on August 31, 2015. The Company does not currently have any revenue under contract nor does it
have any immediate sales prospects. As of March 31, 2018, the Company had an accumulated deficit of approximately $5.0 million incurred since inception. For the three
months ended March 31, 2018, the Company incurred a net loss from continuing operations of approximately $1.1 million and used approximately $1.1 million in net cash from
operating activities from continuing operations. The Company had total cash and cash equivalents of approximately $1.8 million as of March 31, 2018. We have not raised any
additional financing proceeds through the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued. We expect our operating costs to be substantial as we incur
costs related to the clinical trials for our product candidates and that we will operate at a loss for the foreseeable future.
 
We are in the process of raising additional funds by potentially selling additional Senior Convertible Notes, convertible loans or other securities. No assurance can be given that
we will be successful in raising adequate funds needed. If we are unable to raise additional capital when required or on acceptable terms, we may have to significantly delay,
scale back or discontinue the development or commercialization of one or more of our product candidates, restrict our operations or obtain funds by entering into agreements on
unattractive terms, which would likely have a material adverse effect on our business, stock price and our relationships with third parties with whom we have business
relationships, at least until additional funding is obtained.
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Uncertainty concerning our ability to continue as a going concern may hinder our ability to obtain future financing, as well as adversely affect our collaborative drug
development relationships. Continued operations and our ability to continue as a going concern are dependent on our ability to obtain additional funding in the near future and
thereafter, and no assurances can be given that such funding will be available at all or will be available in sufficient amounts or on reasonable terms. Without additional funds
from debt or equity financing, sales of assets, sales or out-licenses of intellectual property or technologies, or other transactions yielding funds, we will rapidly exhaust our
resources and will be unable to continue operations. Absent additional funding, we believe that our cash and cash equivalents will not be sufficient to fund our operations for a
period of one year or more after the date that the consolidated financial statements are available to be issued based on the timing and amount of our projected net loss from
continuing operations and cash to be used in operating activities during that period of time.
 
As a result, substantial doubt exists about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the consolidated financial statements are
available to be issued. The consolidated financial statements included in Item 1 of Form 10-Q do not include any adjustments to reflect the possible future effects on the
recoverability and classification of recorded assets, or the amounts and classification of liabilities that might be different should the Company be unable to continue as a going
concern based on the outcome of these uncertainties described above.
 
Critical Accounting Policies, Significant Judgments and Use of Estimates
 
Our management’s discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations is based on our financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States, or GAAP. The preparation of these financial statements requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, as well as the reported revenue and
expenses during the reporting periods. These items are monitored and analyzed by us for changes in facts and circumstances, and material changes in these estimates could
occur in the future. We base our estimates on historical experience and on various other factors that we believe are reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis for making judgments about the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Changes in estimates are reflected in
reported results for the period in which they become known. Actual results may differ materially from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions. The
accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements and related financial information should be read in conjunction with the audited financial statements and related
footnotes included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2017. Except as otherwise disclosed related to the acquisition of the intangible asset
and recognition of the deferred tax liability for the acquired temporary difference between the financial reporting basis and the tax basis of the intangible asset, there have been
no material changes in our critical accounting policies and estimates in the preparation of our financial statements during the three months ended March 31, 2018 compared to
those disclosed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K/A for the year ended December 31, 2017, as filed with the SEC on April 17, 2018.
 
Results of Operations
 
Comparison of the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017
 
The following table summarizes our net loss during the periods indicated:
 
  Three Months Ended        
  March 31,   Change  
  2018   2017   Dollars   Percent  
Operating Expenses                 

Research and development costs  $ 807,661  $ 139,922  $ 667,739   477.2%
General and administrative expenses   483,955   94,018   389,937   414.7%

Total operating expenses   1,291,616   233,940   1,057,676   452.1%
Other Income (Expense)                 

Interest Expense   (87,740)   -   (87,740)     
Interest Income   1,024   1,498   (474)     

Total other income (expense)   (86,716)   1,498   (88,214)     
Net Operating Loss Before Income Tax Benefit   1,378,332   232,442   1,145,890   493.0%
Income Tax Benefit   (281,534)   -   (281,534)     
Net Loss  $ 1,096,798  $ 232,442  $ 864,356   371.9%
 
Revenues. Processa had no revenues during the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. The Company has had no revenue since inception on August 31,
2015. The Company does not currently have any revenue under contract nor does it have any immediate sales prospects.
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Operating Expenses.
 
Research and Development Expenses. Our research and development costs are expensed as incurred. Research and development expenses primarily consist of (i) licensing of
compounds for product testing and development, (ii) program and testing related expenses, (iii) amortization of the exclusive license intangible asset used in research and
development activities, and (iv) internal research and development staff related payroll, taxes and employee benefits, external consulting and professional fees related to the
product testing and development activities of the Company. Non-refundable advance payments for goods and services to be used in future research and development activities
are recorded as prepaid expenses and expensed when the research and development activities are performed. Research and development expenses were approximately $808,000
and $140,000 for the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, representing an increase of approximately $668,000 or 477.2%.
 
The increase in research and development expenses relate primarily to the substantial completion of the licensing, program and testing costs incurred under the Drexel
agreement in 2016 and no replacement compound available for testing until the CoNCERT Pharmaceuticals, Inc. license and option agreement for the replacement compound
CTP-499 was executed in October 2017. As a result, research and development expenses for licensing, program and testing costs were approximately $604,000 higher in 2018
compared to 2017. These costs were primarily related to the need to establish a new site to manufacture the tablets of CTP-499 since the original CoNCERT tablet
manufacturing site could no longer be used. Once a vendor was chosen, the CoNCERT Option and License agreement allowed Processa to begin the transfer and development
of the manufacturing and analytical processes. This manufacturing development and initial testing was required to ensure that the consistency of the product was maintained and
similar to the CTP-499 tablets manufactured by CoNCERT. Processa moved forward with the manufacturing site change during the option period at risk believing that it would
have the ability to exercise the option at some point in time, which Processa exercised in March 2018. As a result of exercising the option, the Company recognized
approximately $25,000 of amortization expense on the intangible asset in 2018 with no similar cost in 2017.
 
In addition, research and development staff related payroll, taxes and employee benefits increased approximately $45,000 in 2018 compared to 2017 related to an increase in
full-time equivalent staff and related costs. Professional fees increased slightly in support of the increased licensing, program and testing activities.
 
Our clinical trial accruals are based on estimates of patient enrollment and related costs at clinical investigator sites as well as estimates for the services received and efforts
expended pursuant to contracts with multiple research institutions and Contact Research Organizations (CROs) that conduct and manage clinical trials on our behalf.
 
We estimate preclinical and clinical trial expenses based on the services performed, pursuant to contracts with research institutions and clinical research organizations that
conduct and manage preclinical studies and clinical trials on our behalf. In accruing service fees, we estimate the time period over which services will be performed and the level
of patient enrollment and activity expended in each period. If the actual timing of the performance of services or the level of effort varies from the estimate, we will adjust the
accrual accordingly. Payments made to third parties under these arrangements in advance of the receipt of the related series are recorded as prepaid expenses until the services
are rendered.
 
We expect research and development expenses to increase as we advance our lead candidates and pipeline product candidates. The funding necessary to bring a drug candidate
to market is subject to numerous uncertainties. Once a drug candidate is identified, the further development of that drug candidate can be halted or abandoned at any time due to
a number of factors. These factors include, but are not limited to, funding constraints, safety or a change in market demand. For each of our drug candidate programs, we
periodically assess the scientific progress and merits of the programs to determine if continued research and development is economically viable. Certain of our programs may
be terminated due to the lack of scientific progress and lack of prospects for ultimate commercialization.
 
General and Administrative Expenses. General and administrative expenses for the three months ended March 31, 2018 increased approximately $390,000, or 414.7% to
approximately $484,000 compared to approximately $94,000 for the three months ended March 31, 2017. The increase in general and administrative expenses relate primarily
to professional fees for legal, accounting, advisory and consulting costs of approximately $191,000 related to Company operations and costs of being a public company; a
cybersecurity fraud loss of approximately $144,000 for which the Company does not have insurance coverage; increased internal general and administrative staff related
payroll, taxes and employee benefits of approximately $40,000 due to an increase in full-time equivalent staff and related costs to support the growth in Company operations
and public company reporting requirements. Cost reimbursements (payroll, health care and office rent) by Corlyst were comparable for the three months ended March 31, 2018
and 2017. Changes in other general and administrative expenses were not material and accounted for the balance of the increase in general and administrative expenses for the
comparable periods.
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We expect the general and administrative expenses and consulting costs to increase as we add staff to support the growing research and development activities of the Company
and the administration required to operate as a public company. As a result of the cybersecurity breach, we implemented certain review and approval procedures internally and
with our banks; our technology consultants have implemented system changes; and, we reported the fraud to our banks and the Federal Bureau of Investigation Cyber Crimes
Unit. While we are taking steps to prevent such an event from reoccurring, we cannot provide assurance that similar issues will not reoccur. Failure of our control systems to
prevent or detect and correct errors or fraud could have a material and adverse effect on our financial condition.
 
Other Income (Expense).
 
Interest Expense. Interest expense was approximately $88,000 and $0 for the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. Interest expense represents accrued
interest of approximately $52,000 and the amortization of debt issuance costs of approximately $36,000 on the $2.58 million issuance of 8% Senior Convertible Notes issued on
October 4, 2017 ($1,250,000) and November 21, 2017 ($1,330,000). The interest accrues monthly at 8% annually on the principal balance outstanding and is payable in kind
through the issuance of common stock of the Company at maturity, which is not later than one-year from the date of issuance of the Senior Convertible Notes. The debt
issuance costs are amortized over a one-year period on the effective interest method. The principal balance of the Senior Convertible Notes is also automatically and mandatorily
convertible into the common stock of the Company at maturity, except for a change in control event or default. There was no debt in 2017.
 
Interest Income. Interest income was approximately $1,000 and $1,500 for the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. Interest income represents interest
earned on money market funds and certificates of deposit which matured in 2017.
 
Income Tax Benefit. An income tax benefit of approximately $282,000 and $0 was recognized for the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. A deferred tax
liability was recorded when CoNCERT sold its license and “Know-How” to Processa for stock in an Internal Revenue Code Section 351 transaction on March 19, 2018. A
Section 351 transaction treats the acquisition of the Know-How for stock as a tax-free exchange. As a result, under ASC 740-10-25-51 Income Taxes, Processa recorded a
deferred tax liability of approximately $3,037,000 for the acquired temporary difference between the financial reporting basis of approximately $11,039,000 and the tax basis of
approximately $2,000. The deferred tax liability may be offset by the deferred tax assets resulting from 2017 and 2018 taxable net operating losses. Under ACS 740-270
Income Taxes – Interim Reporting, the Company is required to project its 2018 federal and state effective income tax rate and apply it to the March 31, 2018 operating loss
before income taxes. Based on the projection, the Company expects to recognize the tax benefit from the 2017 taxable net operating loss carryover and the projected 2018 loss,
which resulted in the recognition of a deferred tax benefit shown in the consolidated statements of operations for 2018.
 
Prior to the asset purchase transaction on October 4, 2017, Promet was treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes and thus was not subject to income taxes at the
entity level. Therefore, no provision/benefit or liability for income taxes was included in the consolidated financial statements through October 4, 2017.
 
Financial Condition
 
Total assets increased by approximately $9.9 million to $12.9 million at March 31, 2018 compared to $3.0 million at December 31, 2017. This increase is primarily attributable
to the acquisition of the exclusive license intangible asset from CoNCERT Pharmaceuticals, Inc. for the CTP-499 compound (also known as the Company’s lead product PCS-
499) in exchange for CoNCERT receiving $8 million of Processa common stock that was owned by Promet (or 2,090,301 shares), recognition of the approximately $3.0 million
deferred tax liability related to the acquired temporary difference for the intangible asset between book and tax basis and transaction costs . The intangible asset is used in
research and development activities and has alternative future uses (in research and development projects or otherwise). As a result, the acquisition cost of approximately $11
million are capitalized and amortized over the intangible asset’s useful life in accordance with Topic 350, Intangibles – Goodwill and Other. The increase is partially offset by
(i) the decrease in cash and cash equivalents of approximately $1.1 million used primarily to fund the loss from operations of approximately $1.4 million and (ii) the decrease in
amounts due from Corlyst, a related party, of approximately $36,000.
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We expect to continue to require significant future financing to fund our operating activities and to use cash in operating activities for the foreseeable future as we continue our
research and development activities to develop products that can be commercialized to generate revenue. Absent additional financing, substantial doubt exists about the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern as noted under Going Concern above.
 
Liabilities increased approximately $3.0 million at March 31, 2018 compared to December 31, 2017 related primarily to (i) the recognition of approximately $3.04 million for
the deferred tax liability related to the acquired temporary difference for the intangible asset, partially offset by the recognition of approximately $282,000 of income tax benefit
related to the release of the benefit from net operating losses and the amortization of the intangible asset; (ii) the increase in accrued interest of approximately $52,000 on the
Senior Convertible Notes that is not due until maturity in October and November 2018, but will be paid through issuance of a variable number of common shares based on a
valuation of the stock at that date; (iii) the decrease in unamortized debt issuance costs of approximately $36,000 on the Senior Convertible Notes; and (iii) an increase in
accounts payable of approximately $54,000 and accrued expenses of approximately $106,000 related primarily to purchase obligations due to contract research organizations
and professional fees related to being a public company and Processa filing its initial Form 10-K with the SEC.
 
The changes in stockholders’ equity consist of the $1.1 million net loss for the three months ended March 31, 2018 in accumulated deficit and the fair value of the Promet
common stock of $8 million or 2,090,301 shares exchanged with CoNCERT to acquire the exclusive license intangible asset recognized as an increase in additional paid-in
capital.
 
Liquidity and Capital Resources
 
To date, we have funded our business and operations primarily through the private placement of equity securities and senior secured convertible notes. At March 31, 2018, we
had $1.8 million in cash and cash equivalents compared to $2.9 million in cash and cash equivalents as of December 31, 2017 to be used to fund on-going operations. We do not
believe we have sufficient cash resources to fund all necessary activities for the completion of the Phase 1 study for PCS-499 and the on-going general and administrative costs
of the Company for a period of one year or more from the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued. We do not have any credit facilities as a source
of future funds, and there can be no assurance that we will be able to raise sufficient additional capital on acceptable terms, or at all. As a result, substantial doubt exists about
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that this Form 10-Q is available to be issued.
 
We will seek additional capital through a combination of private and public equity offerings, debt financings and strategic collaborations. However, no assurance can be given
that we will be successful in raising adequate funds needed. If we are unable to raise additional capital when required or on acceptable terms, we may have to significantly delay,
scale back or discontinue the development or commercialization of one or more of our product candidates, restrict our operations or obtain funds by entering into agreements on
unattractive terms, which would likely have a material adverse effect on our business, stock price and our relationships with third parties with whom we have business
relationships, at least until additional funding is obtained.
 
We believe that our existing cash and cash equivalents will not be sufficient to meet our anticipated cash needs for one year from the date the financial statements are available
to be issued. Further, our operating plan may change, and we may need additional funds to meet operational needs and capital requirements for product development sooner
than planned. We currently have no credit facility or committed sources of capital. Because of the numerous risks and uncertainties associated with the development and
commercialization of our product candidates and the extent to which we may enter into additional agreements with third parties to participate in their development and
commercialization, we are unable to estimate the amounts of increased capital outlays and operating expenditures associated with our current and anticipated clinical trials. Our
future capital requirements will depend on many factors, including:
 
 ● the timing and extent of spending on our research and development efforts, including with respect to PCS-499 and our other product candidates;
   
 ● our ability to enter into and maintain collaboration, licensing and other arrangements and the terms and timing of such arrangements;
   
 ● the timing of the NDA submission and marketing approval for PCS-499, if any;
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 ● the cost of preparing, filing, prosecuting, defending and enforcing any patent claims and other intellectual property rights;
   
 ● the receipt of any collaboration or milestone payments;
   
 ● the scope, rate of progress, results and cost of our clinical trials, preclinical testing and other related activities;
   
 ● the emergence of competing technologies or other adverse market developments;
   
 ● the time and costs involved in seeking and obtaining regulatory and marketing approvals in multiple jurisdictions for our product candidates that successfully

complete clinical trials;
   
 ● the introduction of new product candidates and the number and characteristics of product candidates that we pursue;
   
 ● the potential acquisition and in-licensing of other technologies, products or assets.
 
We will need to raise additional capital to fund our operations in the near future. Funding may not be available to us on acceptable terms, or at all. If we are unable to obtain
adequate financing when needed, we may have to delay, reduce the scope of or suspend one or more of our clinical trials, or research and development programs. We may seek
to raise any necessary additional capital through a combination of public or private equity offerings, debt financings, collaborations, strategic alliances, licensing arrangements
and other marketing and distribution arrangements. To the extent that we raise additional capital through marketing and distribution arrangements or other collaborations,
strategic alliances or licensing arrangements with third parties, we may have to relinquish valuable rights to our product candidates, future revenue streams, research programs
or product candidates or to grant licenses on terms that may not be favorable to us. If we do raise additional capital through public or private equity offerings, the ownership
interest of our existing stockholders will be diluted, and the terms of these securities may include liquidation or other preferences that adversely affect our stockholders’ rights.
If we raise additional capital through debt financing, we may be subject to covenants limiting or restricting our ability to take specific actions, such as incurring additional debt,
making capital expenditures or declaring dividends.
 
Cash Flows
 
The following table sets forth the primary sources and uses of cash and cash equivalents for each of the periods presented below.
 
  For the Three Months Ended  
  March 31,  
  2018   2017  
Net cash provided by (used in):         

Operating activities  $ (1,069,008)  $ (58,698)
Investing activities   (1,782)   (882)
Financing activities   -   - 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents  $ (1,070,790)  $ (59,580)
 
Net cash used in operating activities
 
Net cash used in operating activities was approximately $1.1 million and $59 thousand for the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. The increase in cash
used in operating activities in 2018 compared to 2017 is primarily related to the increased spending on research and development activities for PCS-499 licensing, program and
testing costs, including internal staff costs and increased general and administrative costs related to internal staff growth, professional fees for legal, accounting, advisory and
consulting costs for operations and the costs of being a public company. In addition, we incurred a cybersecurity fraud loss of approximately $144,000 in January 2018 which is
recognized in general and administrative expenses.
 
Research and development contract and licensing costs incurred under the Drexel agreement was substantially completed in 2016 and the contract was officially terminated in
June 2017. However, the CoNCERT Pharmaceuticals, Inc. license and option agreement for the replacement compound CTP-499 (also known as the Company’s lead product
PCS-499) was not executed until October 2017. As a result, research and development costs for program costs, testing and licensing was significantly lower in 2017 compared to
2018.
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See the consolidated statements of cash flows in this report on Form 10-Q for the non-cash financing and investing activities related to the acquisition of the intangible asset
from CoNCERT in 2018.
 
We anticipate our research and development efforts and on-going general and administrative costs will generate negative cash flows from operating activities for the foreseeable
future. As the Company is still in the process of developing its products, we do not currently sell or distribute pharmaceutical products. We do not currently have sales or
marketing capabilities.
 
Net cash used in investing activities
 
Net cash used in investing activities was insignificant for the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017. The costs incurred related to the transaction costs incurred to
acquire the exclusive license intangible asset in 2018 (see Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements included in this Form 10-Q) and the purchase of property and
equipment in 2017.
 
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities
 
There were no financing activities for the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017. We expect that we will continue to seek additional capital through a combination of
private and public equity offerings, debt financings and strategic collaborations to fund future operations. However, no assurance can be given that we will be successful in
raising adequate funds needed. Absent additional financing, substantial doubt exists about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern as noted under Going Concern
above.
 
Off Balance Sheet Arrangements
 
At March 31, 2018 and 2017, we did not have any off-balance sheet arrangements.
 
Contractual Obligations and Commitments
 
During the three months ended March 31, 2018 our contractual obligations increased to $1,006,000. See Note 8 included in the consolidated financial statements in this Form
10-Q. There were no other significant changes in the other components of our “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations”
included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K/A for the year ended December 31, 2017 filed with the SEC on April, 17, 2018.
 
Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements
 
We are an “emerging growth company” as that term is defined in the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 2012 (the “JOBS Act”). Section 102(b)(1) of the JOBS Act
exempts emerging growth companies from being required to comply with new or revised financial accounting standards until private companies (i.e., those that have not had a
registration statement declared effective under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), or do not have a class of securities registered under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”)) are required to comply with such new or revised financial accounting standards.
 
From May 2014 through March 31, 2018, the FASB issued several ASUs related to ASU 2014-09, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606). The new guidance is
effective for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2017, although entities may adopt one year earlier if they choose. The two permitted transition methods
under the new standard are the full retrospective method, in which case the standard would be applied to each prior reporting period presented and the cumulative effect of
applying the standard would be recognized at the earliest period shown, or the modified retrospective method, in which case the cumulative effect of applying the standard
would be recognized at the date of initial application. The Company is currently in the pre-revenue stages of operations; therefore, we do not currently anticipate there would be
any change to timing or method of recognizing revenue. As such, the adoption of this new standard did not have a material impact on our results of operations, financial
condition or cash flows.
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In February 2016 through March 31, 2018, the FASB issued several ASUs related to ASU-2016-02, “Leases (Topic 842).” The guidance requires that a lessee recognize in the
statement of financial position a liability to make lease payments (the lease liability) and a right of use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term.
For operating leases: the right-of-use asset and a lease liability will be initially measured at the present value of the lease payments, in the statement of financial position; a
single lease cost will be recognized, calculated so that the cost of the lease is allocated over the lease term on a generally straight-line basis; and all cash payments will be
classified within operating activities in the statement of cash flows. The amendments in Topic 842 are effective for the Company beginning January 1, 2019. The Company’s
office lease expires September 30, 2019. Management is currently evaluating the impact of adopting the new guidance on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
 
ITEM 3.  QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
 
There have been no material changes to the information set forth in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2017.
 
ITEM 4.  CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
 
We have fewer than 300 stockholders on record and are not a mandatory filer of reports under Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act. As a voluntary filer, we may choose to
cease filing Exchange Act reports at any time.
 
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures
 
Our management, with the participation of our Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer, has evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and
procedures as of the end of the period covered by this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. The term “disclosure controls and procedures,” as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-
15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), means controls and other procedures of a company that are designed to ensure that
information required to be disclosed by a company in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the
time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission’s (“SEC’s”) rules and forms. Disclosure controls and procedures include, without limitation, controls and
procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by a company in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is accumulated and
communicated to our management, including its principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, as appropriate to allow timely
decisions regarding required disclosure. Management recognizes that any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable
assurance of achieving their objectives and management necessarily applies its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures. Based
upon that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were not effective at the reasonable
assurance level as of March 31, 2018, due to the material weaknesses in internal control over financial reporting that is described below. Notwithstanding the material
weaknesses, management has concluded that the Company’s unaudited consolidated financial statements for the periods covered by and included in this quarterly report on
Form 10-Q are fairly stated in all material respects in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) for each of the periods presented herein.
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
 
A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of our annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. As previously disclosed in Item 9A of our Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2017, (i) due to budget constraints and limited financial resources, the Company’s accounting department does not maintain the number of accounting
personnel (either in-house or external) necessary to ensure more complete and effective financial reporting and disclosure controls and (ii) we incurred a loss of approximately
$144,000 due to fraud from a cybersecurity breach. These control deficiencies did not result in a misstatement to our consolidated financial statements. However, these control
deficiencies could have resulted in a material misstatement to our annual or interim consolidated financial statements that would not be prevented or detected. Accordingly, our
management has determined that these control deficiencies constitute material weaknesses.
 
Remediation Plan and Activities
 
As we disclosed in our Item 9A of our Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2017, we developed remediation plans for the material weaknesses related to the inadequate
number of accounting personnel (either in-house or external) necessary to ensure more complete and effective financial reporting and disclosure controls and the fraud from a
cybersecurity breach. Due to the limited number of employees and limited financial resources to hire required accounting and finance staff to implement more complete and
effective financial reporting and disclosure controls, the Company was unable to remediate the related material weakness through the date this report on Form 10-Q was
available to be issued. However, management and external consultants, with participation and input from the board of directors, continue to monitor and provide oversight in the
areas where material misstatements may occur to enable management to provide reasonable assurance that the Company’s unaudited consolidated financial statements for the
periods covered by and included in this quarterly report on Form 10-Q are fairly stated in all material respects in accordance with GAAP for each of the periods presented
herein.
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As we disclosed in our Item 9A of our Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2017, management and external consultants, with participation and input from the board of
directors, commenced measures to remediate the material weakness related to the fraud from the cybersecurity breach during the three months ended March 31, 2018. These
measures included the implementation of certain review and approval procedures internally and with our banks and, IT system changes to enhance system access controls and
limit the ability of hackers to gain access to internal systems to provide preventative and detective measures to safeguard Company assets.
 
We are committed to maintaining a strong internal control environment with our limited financial resources and we will continue to address internal and disclosure control
weaknesses, in a cost-effective manner, as necessary, to improve the effectiveness of our internal and disclosure controls. The remediation plans developed that we have
implemented and plan to implement are subject to ongoing senior management review, as well as board of directors’ oversight. We will not be able to conclude whether the
steps we are taking will fully remediate these material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting until we have completed our remediation efforts and
subsequent evaluation of their effectiveness. We may also conclude that additional measures may be required to remediate the material weaknesses in our internal control over
financial reporting, which may necessitate additional implementation and evaluation time. We will continue to assess the effectiveness of our internal control over financial
reporting and take steps to remediate the known material weakness in a cost-effective manner.
 
Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
 
During the three months ended March 31, 2018, we began to make changes in our internal control over financial reporting as noted above. Other than the remediation steps
taken above, there were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting identified in connection with the evaluation required by Rule 13a-15(d) and 15d-15(d) of the
Exchange Act that occurred during the quarter ended March 31, 2018 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over
financial reporting.
 
Inherent Limitations on Effectiveness of Controls
 
Management recognizes that a control system, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the control
system are met. Further, the design of a control system must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints and that management is required to apply its judgment in
evaluating the benefits of possible controls and procedures relative to their costs. Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide
absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud or error, if any, have been detected. These inherent limitations include the realities that judgments in decision
making can be faulty, and that breakdowns can occur because of a simple error or mistake. Additionally, controls can be circumvented by the individual acts of some persons,
by collusion of two or more people, or by management override of the controls. The design of any system of controls also is based in part upon certain assumptions about the
likelihood of future events, and there can be no assurance that any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions; over time, controls may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or the degree of compliance with policies or procedures may deteriorate. Because of the inherent limitations in a cost-
effective control system, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
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 PART II. OTHER INFORMATION
 
ITEM 1.  LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
 
We are currently not a party to any material legal proceedings.
 
ITEM 1A.  RISK FACTORS
 
Our risk factors have not changed materially from those disclosed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2017, as filed with the SEC (as
amended) on April 17, 2018.
 
ITEM 2.  UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS
 
(a) Recent Sale of Unregistered Securities
 
None.
 
(b) Use of Proceeds from Public Offering of Common Stock
 
None.
 
(c) Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
 
We did not repurchase any shares of our common stock during the three months ended March 31, 2018.
 
ITEM 3.  DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES
 
None.
 
ITEM 4.  MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
 
Not applicable.
 
ITEM 5.  OTHER INFORMATION
 
None.
 
ITEM 6.  EXHIBITS
 
SEC Ref. No. Title of Document
10.1  Boustead Engagement Letter
10.2  Form of Purchase Agreement
10.3  Form of Warrant
31.1  Rule 153-14(a) Certification by Principal Executive Officer
32.1  Section 1350 Certification of Principal Executive Officer
99.1  XBRL Files
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SIGNATURES
 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly
authorized.
 
 PROCESSA PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.
   
 By: /s/ David Young
  David Young
  Chief Executive Officer and Acting Chief Financial Officer
  (Principal Executive Officer, Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting

Officer)
  
 Dated:   May 21, 2018
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THIS SECURITY HAS NOT BEEN REGISTERED WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OR THE SECURITIES COMMISSION OF
ANY STATE IN RELIANCE UPON AN EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE “SECURITIES
ACT”), AND, ACCORDINGLY, MAY NOT BE OFFERED OR SOLD EXCEPT PURSUANT TO AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT UNDER THE
SECURITIES ACT OR PURSUANT TO AN AVAILABLE EXEMPTION FROM, OR IN A TRANSACTION NOT SUBJECT TO, THE REGISTRATION
REQUIREMENTS OF THE SECURITIES ACT AND IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS.
 

COMMON STOCK PURCHASE WARRANT
 

PROCESSA PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.
 

Warrant Shares: [              ]  Initial Exercise Date: November 15, 2018
   Issue Date: May 15, 2018
 

THIS COMMON STOCK PURCHASE WARRANT (the “Warrant”) certifies that, for value received, [      ] or its assigns (the “Holder”) is entitled, upon the
terms and subject to the limitations on exercise and the conditions hereinafter set forth, at any time on or after the Initial Exercise Date and on or prior to 5:00 p.m. New York
time on June 29, 2021 (the “Termination Date”) but not thereafter, to subscribe for and purchase from Processa Pharmaceuticals, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”),
up to [                 ] shares (as subject to adjustment hereunder, the “Warrant Shares”) of Common Stock. The purchase price of one share of Common Stock under this Warrant
shall be equal to the Exercise Price, as defined in Section 2(b).

 
Section 1. Definitions. Capitalized terms used and not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings set forth in that certain Securities Purchase Agreement (the “Securities
Purchase Agreement”), dated as of May 15, 2018, among the Company and the holders signatory thereto.
 
Section 2. Exercise.
 

(a) Exercise of the purchase rights represented by this Warrant may be made, in whole or in part, at any time or times on or after the Initial Exercise Date and
on or before the Termination Date by delivery to the Company (or such other office or agency of the Company as it may designate by notice in writing to the registered Holder
at the address of the Holder appearing on the books of the Company) of a duly executed facsimile copy (or e-mail attachment) of the Notice of Exercise in the form annexed
hereto. Within two (2) Trading Days following the date of exercise as aforesaid, the Holder shall deliver the aggregate Exercise Price for the shares specified in the applicable
Notice of Exercise by wire transfer or cashier’s check drawn on a United States bank unless the cashless exercise procedure specified in Section 2(c) below is specified in the
applicable Notice of Exercise. No ink-original Notice of Exercise shall be required, nor shall any medallion guarantee (or other type of guarantee or notarization) of any Notice
of Exercise form be required. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the Holder shall not be required to physically surrender this Warrant to the Company until the
Holder has purchased all of the Warrant Shares available hereunder and the Warrant has been exercised in full, in which case, the Holder shall surrender this Warrant to the
Company for cancellation within two (2) Trading Days of the date the final Notice of Exercise is delivered to the Company. Partial exercises of this Warrant resulting in
purchases of a portion of the total number of Warrant Shares available hereunder shall have the effect of lowering the outstanding number of Warrant Shares purchasable
hereunder in an amount equal to the applicable number of Warrant Shares purchased. The Holder and the Company shall maintain records showing the number of Warrant
Shares purchased and the date of such purchases. The Company shall deliver any objection to any Notice of Exercise within one (1) Business Day of receipt of such notice. The
Holder and any assignee, by acceptance of this Warrant, acknowledge and agree that, by reason of the provisions of this paragraph, following the purchase of a
portion of the Warrant Shares hereunder, the number of Warrant Shares available for purchase hereunder at any given time may be less than the amount stated on
the face hereof.
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(b) Exercise Price. The exercise price per share of the Common Stock under this Warrant shall be $2.724, subject to adjustment hereunder (the “Exercise
Price”).

 
(c) Cashless Exercise. If, after the six month anniversary of the Initial Exercise Date, at the time of exercise hereof there is no effective registration statement

registering, or the prospectus contained therein is not available for the issuance of the Warrant Shares to the Holder, then this Warrant may also be exercised, in whole or in
part, at such time by means of a “cashless exercise” in which the Holder shall be entitled to receive a number of Warrant Shares equal to the quotient obtained by dividing [(A-
B)*(X)] by (A), where:

 
 (A) = the last VWAP immediately preceding the date of delivery of the Notice of Exercise giving rise to the applicable “cashless exercise,” as set forth in the applicable

Notice of Exercise (to clarify, the “last VWAP” will be the last VWAP as calculated over an entire Trading Day such that, in the event that this Warrant is
exercised at a time that the Trading Market is open, the prior Trading Day’s VWAP shall be used in this calculation);

   
 (B) = the Exercise Price of this Warrant, as adjusted hereunder; and
   
 (X) = the number of Warrant Shares that would be issuable upon exercise of this Warrant in accordance with the terms of this Warrant if such exercise were by means of

a cash exercise rather than a cashless exercise.
 

If Warrant Shares are issued in such a cashless exercise, the parties acknowledge and agree that in accordance with Section 3(a)(9) of the Securities Act, the
Warrant Shares shall take on the registered characteristics of the Warrants being exercised, and the holding period of the Warrants being exercised may be tacked on to the
holding period of the Warrant Shares. The Company agrees not to take any position contrary to this Section 2(c). For avoidance of doubt, no “cashless exercise” under this
Section 2(c) may occur (i) during the first six months following the Initial Exercise Date or (ii) after the six months following the Initial Exercise Date if there is not an effective
registration statement registering the issuance of the Warrant Shares to the Holder.
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“VWAP” means, for any date, the price determined by the first of the following clauses that applies: (a) if the Common Stock is then listed or quoted on a
Trading Market, the daily volume weighted average price of the Common Stock for such date (or the nearest preceding date) on the Trading Market on which the Common
Stock is then listed or quoted as reported by Bloomberg L.P. (based on a Trading Day from 9:30 a.m. (New York City time) to 4:00 p.m. (New York City time)), (b) if OTCQB
or OTCQX is not a Trading Market, the volume weighted average price of the Common Stock for such date (or the nearest preceding date) on OTCQB or OTCQX as
applicable, (c) if the Common Stock is not then listed or quoted for trading on OTCQB or OTCQX and if prices for the Common Stock are then reported in the “Pink Sheets”
published by OTC Markets, Inc. (or a similar organization or agency succeeding to its functions of reporting prices), the most recent bid price per share of the Common Stock
so reported, or (d) in all other cases, the fair market value of a share of Common Stock as determined by an independent appraiser selected in good faith by the Purchasers of a
majority in interest of the Securities then outstanding and reasonably acceptable to the Company, the fees and expenses of which shall be paid by the Company.

 
(d) Mechanics of Exercise.
 
i. Delivery of Warrant Shares Upon Exercise. The Company shall cause the Warrant Shares purchased hereunder to be transmitted by the Transfer Agent to the

Holder by crediting the account of the Holder’s or its designee’s balance account with The Depository Trust Company through its Deposit or Withdrawal at Custodian
system (“DWAC”) if the Company is then a participant in such system and either (A) there is an effective registration statement permitting the issuance of the Warrant
Shares to or resale of the Warrant Shares by Holder or (B) this Warrant is being exercised via “cashless exercise”, and otherwise by physical delivery of a certificate,
registered in the Company’s share register in the name of the Holder or its designee, for the number of Warrant Shares to which the Holder is entitled pursuant to such
exercise to the address specified by the Holder in the Notice of Exercise by the date that is two (2) Trading Days after the delivery to the Company of the Notice of
Exercise (such date, the “Warrant Share Delivery Date”).The Warrant Shares shall be deemed to have been issued, and Holder or any other person so designated to be
named therein shall be deemed to have become a holder of record of such shares for all purposes, as of the date the Warrant has been exercised, with payment to the
Company of the Exercise Price (or by cashless exercise, if permitted) and all taxes required to be paid by the Holder, if any, pursuant to Section 2(d)(v) prior to the
issuance of such shares, having been paid.

 
ii. Delivery of New Warrants Upon Exercise. If this Warrant shall have been exercised in part, the Company shall, at the request of a Holder and upon surrender

of this Warrant certificate, at the time of delivery of the Warrant Shares, deliver to the Holder a new Warrant evidencing the rights of the Holder to purchase the
unpurchased Warrant Shares called for by this Warrant, which new Warrant shall in all other respects be identical with this Warrant.

 
iii. Rescission Rights. If the Company fails to cause the Transfer Agent to transmit to the Holder the Warrant Shares pursuant to Section 2(d)(i) by the Warrant

Share Delivery Date, then the Holder will have the right to rescind such exercise.
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iv. No Fractional Shares or Scrip. No fractional shares or scrip representing fractional shares shall be issued upon the exercise of this Warrant. As to any
fraction of a share which the Holder would otherwise be entitled to purchase upon such exercise, the Company shall, pay a cash adjustment in respect of such final
fraction in an amount equal to such fraction multiplied by the Exercise Price.

 
v. Charges, Taxes and Expenses. Issuance of Warrant Shares shall be made without charge to the Holder for any issue or transfer tax or other incidental expense

in respect of the issuance of such Warrant Shares, all of which taxes and expenses shall be paid by the Company, and such Warrant Shares shall be issued in the name of
the Holder or in such name or names as may be directed by the Holder; provided, however, that in the event Warrant Shares are to be issued in a name other than the
name of the Holder, this Warrant when surrendered for exercise shall be accompanied by the Assignment Form attached hereto duly executed by the Holder and the
Company may require, as a condition thereto, the payment of a sum sufficient to reimburse it for any transfer tax incidental thereto. The Company shall pay all Transfer
Agent fees required for same-day processing of any Notice of Exercise and all fees to the Depository Trust Company (or another established clearing corporation
performing similar functions) required for same-day electronic delivery of the Warrant Shares.

 
vi. Closing of Books. The Company will not close its stockholder books or records in any manner which prevents the timely exercise of this Warrant, pursuant

to the terms hereof.
 
(e) Call Provision. If at any time prior to the expiration of, or the exercise by the Holder of this Warrant the closing price (as reported by the OTC Markets or

a Trading Market, if listed) of Company’s Common Stock is equal to 200% or more than the Exercise Price for twenty (20) consecutive Trading Days (the “Trading Price
Condition”), the Company shall have the right to call, redeem and cancel this Warrant on the tenth day after written notice by the Company to the Holder and payment to the
Holder in cash of $0.0001 per Warrant Share. To effectively exercise this call provision, such written notice of intent to exercise the call provision under this Section 2(e) must
be provided by the Company no later than the close of business on the second Trading Day following satisfaction of the Trading Price Condition. The Holder may exercise this
Warrant on a cash basis (or cashless basis if there is not an effective registration statement registering the issuance of the Warrant Shares to the Holder) after written notice by
the Company, but before the tenth day after such written notice, which exercise shall nullify the Company’s right to call, redeem and cancel this Warrant. Failure by the
Company to provide timely notice shall preclude the Company from exercising this call provision with respect to the satisfaction of the Trading Price Condition over that twenty
(20) consecutive Trading Day period but shall not preclude the Company from exercising this call provision with respect to satisfaction of the Trading Price Condition over any
other subsequent twenty (20) consecutive Trading Days. The Company may not call, redeem or cancel any portion of this Warrant that may not be exercised during the ten (10)
day notification period pursuant to the restrictions on exercise in Section 2(a).
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Section 3. Certain Adjustments.
 

(a) Stock Dividends and Splits. If the Company, at any time while this Warrant is outstanding: (i) pays a stock dividend or otherwise makes a distribution or
distributions on shares of its Common Stock or any other equity or equity equivalent securities payable in shares of Common Stock (which, for avoidance of doubt, shall not
include any shares of Common Stock issued by the Company upon exercise of this Warrant), (ii) subdivides outstanding shares of Common Stock into a larger number of
shares, (iii) combines (including by way of reverse stock split) outstanding shares of Common Stock into a smaller number of shares, or (iv) issues by reclassification of shares
of the Common Stock any shares of capital stock of the Company, then in each case the Exercise Price shall be multiplied by a fraction of which the numerator shall be the
number of shares of Common Stock (excluding treasury shares, if any) outstanding immediately before such event and of which the denominator shall be the number of shares
of Common Stock outstanding immediately after such event, and the number of shares issuable upon exercise of this Warrant shall be proportionately adjusted such that the
aggregate Exercise Price of this Warrant shall remain unchanged. Any adjustment made pursuant to this Section 3(a) shall become effective immediately after the record date
for the determination of stockholders entitled to receive such dividend or distribution and shall become effective immediately after the effective date in the case of a subdivision,
combination or re-classification.

 
(b) Calculations. All calculations under this Section 3 shall be made to the nearest cent or the nearest 1/100th of a share, as the case may be. For purposes of

this Section 3, the number of shares of Common Stock deemed to be issued and outstanding as of a given date shall be the sum of the number of shares of Common Stock
(excluding treasury shares, if any) issued and outstanding.

 
(c) Notice to Holder.
 
i. Adjustment to Exercise Price. Whenever the Exercise Price is adjusted pursuant to any provision of this Section 3, the Company shall promptly deliver to the

Holder by facsimile or email a notice setting forth the Exercise Price after such adjustment and any resulting adjustment to the number of Warrant Shares and setting
forth a brief statement of the facts requiring such adjustment.

 
ii. Notice to Allow Exercise by Holder. If (A) the Company shall declare a dividend (or any other distribution in whatever form) on the Common Stock, (B) the

Company shall declare a special nonrecurring cash dividend on or a redemption of the Common Stock, (C) the Company shall authorize the granting to all holders of the
Common Stock rights or warrants to subscribe for or purchase any shares of capital stock of any class or of any rights, (D) the approval of any stockholders of the
Company shall be required in connection with any reclassification of the Common Stock, any consolidation or merger to which the Company is a party, any sale or
transfer of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company, or any compulsory share exchange whereby the Common Stock is converted into other securities, cash or
property, or (E) the Company shall authorize the voluntary or involuntary dissolution, liquidation or winding up of the affairs of the Company, then, in each case, the
Company shall cause to be delivered by facsimile or email to the Holder at its last facsimile number of email address as it shall appear upon the Warrant Register of the
Company, (unless such notice is filed with the Commission, which in such case, no additional notice is required to be provided to the Holder), at least 10 calendar days
prior to the applicable record or effective date hereinafter specified, a notice stating (x) the date on which a record is to be taken for the purpose of such dividend,
distribution, redemption, rights or warrants, or if a record is not to be taken, the date as of which the holders of the Common Stock of record to be entitled to such
dividend, distributions, redemption, rights or warrants are to be determined or (y) the date on which such reclassification, consolidation, merger, sale, transfer or share
exchange is expected to become effective or close, and the date as of which it is expected that holders of the Common Stock of record shall be entitled to exchange their
shares of the Common Stock for securities, cash or other property deliverable upon such reclassification, consolidation, merger, sale, transfer or share exchange;
provided that the failure to deliver such notice or any defect therein or in the delivery thereof shall not affect the validity of the corporate action required to be specified
in such notice. The Holder shall remain entitled to exercise this Warrant during the period commencing on the date of such notice to the effective date of the event
triggering such notice except as may otherwise be expressly set forth herein.
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Section 4. Transfer of Warrant.
 

(a) Transferability. This Warrant and all rights hereunder (including, without limitation, any registration rights) are transferable, in whole or in part, upon
surrender of this Warrant at the principal office of the Company or its designated agent, together with a written assignment of this Warrant substantially in the form attached
hereto duly executed by the Holder or its agent or attorney and funds sufficient to pay any transfer taxes payable upon the making of such transfer. Upon such surrender and, if
required, such payment, the Company shall execute and deliver a new Warrant or Warrants in the name of the assignee or assignees, as applicable, and in the denomination or
denominations specified in such instrument of assignment, and shall issue to the assignor a new Warrant evidencing the portion of this Warrant not so assigned, and this
Warrant shall promptly be cancelled. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the Holder shall not be required to physically surrender this Warrant to the Company
unless the Holder has assigned this Warrant in full, in which case, the Holder shall surrender this Warrant to the Company within two (2) Trading Days of the date the Holder
delivers an assignment form to the Company assigning this Warrant full. The Warrant, if properly assigned in accordance herewith, may be exercised by a new holder for the
purchase of Warrant Shares without having a new Warrant issued.

 
(b) New Warrants. This Warrant may be divided or combined with other Warrants upon presentation hereof at the aforesaid office of the Company, together

with a written notice specifying the names and denominations in which new Warrants are to be issued, signed by the Holder or its agent or attorney. Subject to compliance with
Section 4(a), as to any transfer which may be involved in such division or combination, the Company shall execute and deliver a new Warrant or Warrants in exchange for the
Warrant or Warrants to be divided or combined in accordance with such notice. All Warrants issued on transfers or exchanges shall be dated the initial issuance date of this
Warrant and shall be identical with this Warrant except as to the number of Warrant Shares issuable pursuant thereto.
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(c) Warrant Register. The Company shall register this Warrant, upon records to be maintained by the Company for that purpose (the “Warrant Register”), in
the name of the record Holder hereof from time to time. The Company may deem and treat the registered Holder of this Warrant as the absolute owner hereof for the purpose of
any exercise hereof or any distribution to the Holder, and for all other purposes, absent actual notice to the contrary.

 
Section 5. Miscellaneous.
 

(a) No Rights as Stockholder Until Exercise. This Warrant does not entitle the Holder to any voting rights, dividends or other rights as a stockholder of the
Company prior to the exercise hereof as set forth in Section 2(d)(i).

 
(b) Loss, Theft, Destruction or Mutilation of Warrant. The Company covenants that upon receipt by the Company of evidence reasonably satisfactory to it of

the loss, theft, destruction or mutilation of this Warrant or any stock certificate relating to the Warrant Shares, and in case of loss, theft or destruction, of indemnity or security
reasonably satisfactory to it (which, in the case of the Warrant, shall not include the posting of any bond), and upon surrender and cancellation of such Warrant or stock
certificate, if mutilated, the Company will make and deliver a new Warrant or stock certificate of like tenor and dated as of such cancellation, in lieu of such Warrant or stock
certificate.

 
(c) Saturdays, Sundays, Holidays, etc. If the last or appointed day for the taking of any action or the expiration of any right required or granted herein shall not

be a Business Day, then, such action may be taken or such right may be exercised on the next succeeding Business Day.
 
(d) Authorized Shares.
 
The Company covenants that, during the period the Warrant is outstanding, it will reserve from its authorized and unissued Common Stock a sufficient

number of shares to provide for the issuance of the Warrant Shares upon the exercise of any purchase rights under this Warrant. The Company further covenants that its
issuance of this Warrant shall constitute full authority to its officers who are charged with the duty of executing stock certificates to execute and issue the necessary Warrant
Shares upon the exercise of the purchase rights under this Warrant. The Company will take all such reasonable action as may be necessary to assure that such Warrant Shares
may be issued as provided herein without violation of any applicable law or regulation, or of any requirements of the Trading Market upon which the Common Stock may be
listed. The Company covenants that all Warrant Shares which may be issued upon the exercise of the purchase rights represented by this Warrant will, upon exercise of the
purchase rights represented by this Warrant and payment for such Warrant Shares in accordance herewith, be duly authorized, validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable and
free from all taxes, liens and charges created by the Company in respect of the issue thereof (other than taxes in respect of any transfer occurring contemporaneously with such
issue).
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Except and to the extent as waived or consented to by the Holder, the Company shall not by any action, including, without limitation, amending its certificate
of incorporation or through any reorganization, transfer of assets, consolidation, merger, dissolution, issue or sale of securities or any other voluntary action, avoid or seek to
avoid the observance or performance of any of the terms of this Warrant, but will at all times in good faith assist in the carrying out of all such terms and in the taking of all such
actions as may be necessary or appropriate to protect the rights of Holder as set forth in this Warrant against impairment. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the
Company will (i) not increase the par value of any Warrant Shares above the amount payable therefor upon such exercise immediately prior to such increase in par value, (ii)
take all such action as may be necessary or appropriate in order that the Company may validly and legally issue fully paid and nonassessable Warrant Shares upon the exercise
of this Warrant and (iii) use commercially reasonable efforts to obtain all such authorizations, exemptions or consents from any public regulatory body having jurisdiction
thereof, as may be, necessary to enable the Company to perform its obligations under this Warrant.

 
Before taking any action which would result in an adjustment in the number of Warrant Shares for which this Warrant is exercisable or in the Exercise Price,

the Company shall obtain all such authorizations or exemptions thereof, or consents thereto, as may be necessary from any public regulatory body or bodies having jurisdiction
thereof.

 
(e) Jurisdiction. All questions concerning the construction, validity, enforcement and interpretation of this Warrant shall be determined in accordance with the

provisions of the Securities Purchase Agreement.
 
(f) Restrictions. The Holder acknowledges that the Warrant Shares acquired upon the exercise of this Warrant, if not registered, will have restrictions upon

resale imposed by state and federal securities laws.
 
(g) Non-waiver. No course of dealing or any delay or failure to exercise any right hereunder on the part of Holder shall operate as a waiver of such right or

otherwise prejudice the Holder’s rights, powers or remedies.
 
(h) Notices. Any notice, request or other document required or permitted to be given or delivered to the Holder by the Company shall be delivered in

accordance with the notice provisions of the Securities Purchase Agreement.
 
(i) Limitation of Liability. No provision hereof, in the absence of any affirmative action by the Holder to exercise this Warrant to purchase Warrant Shares,

and no enumeration herein of the rights or privileges of the Holder, shall give rise to any liability of the Holder for the purchase price of any Common Stock or as a stockholder
of the Company, whether such liability is asserted by the Company or by creditors of the Company.

 
(j) Remedies. The Holder, in addition to being entitled to exercise all rights granted by law, including recovery of damages, will be entitled to specific

performance of its rights under this Warrant. The Company agrees that monetary damages would not be adequate compensation for any loss incurred by reason of a breach by it
of the provisions of this Warrant and hereby agrees to waive and not to assert the defense in any action for specific performance that a remedy at law would be adequate.

 
(k) Successors and Assigns. Subject to applicable securities laws, this Warrant and the rights and obligations evidenced hereby shall inure to the benefit of and

be binding upon the successors and permitted assigns of the Company and the successors and permitted assigns of Holder. The provisions of this Warrant are intended to be for
the benefit of any Holder from time to time of this Warrant and shall be enforceable by the Holder or holder of Warrant Shares.
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(l) Amendment. This Warrant may be modified or amended or the provisions hereof waived with the written consent of the Company and the Holder.
 
(m) Severability. Wherever possible, each provision of this Warrant shall be interpreted in such manner as to be effective and valid under applicable law, but

if any provision of this Warrant shall be prohibited by or invalid under applicable law, such provision shall be ineffective to the extent of such prohibition or invalidity, without
invalidating the remainder of such provisions or the remaining provisions of this Warrant.

 
(n) Headings. The headings used in this Warrant are for the convenience of reference only and shall not, for any purpose, be deemed a part of this Warrant.
 

********************
 

(Signature Page Follows)
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Warrant to be executed by its officer thereunto duly authorized as of the date first above indicated.
 

 PROCESSA PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.
   
 By:                               
 Name:  
 Title:  
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NOTICE OF EXERCISE
 

TO: PROCESSA PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.
  
1. The undersigned hereby elects to purchase ________ Warrant Shares of the Company pursuant to the terms of the attached Warrant (only if exercised in full), and tenders

herewith payment of the exercise price in full, together with all applicable transfer taxes, if any.
  
2. Payment shall take the form of (check applicable box):
  
 [  ] in lawful money of the United States; or
  
 [  ] if permitted the cancellation of such number of Warrant Shares as is necessary, in accordance with the formula set forth in subsection 2(c), to exercise this Warrant with

respect to the maximum number of Warrant Shares purchasable pursuant to the cashless exercise procedure set forth in subsection 2(c).
  
3. Please issue said Warrant Shares in the name of the undersigned or in such other name as is specified below:
 

_______________________________
 
The Warrant Shares shall be delivered to the following DWAC Account Number:

_______________________________
 

_______________________________
 

_______________________________
 
[SIGNATURE OF HOLDER]
 
Name of Investing Entity:                                                                                                                                                                                  
 
Signature of Authorized Signatory of Investing Entity:                                                                                                                              
 
Name of Authorized Signatory:                                                                                                                                                                        
 
Title of Authorized Signatory:                                                                                                                                                                          
 
Date:                                                      

 
 



 
 

ASSIGNMENT FORM
 

(To assign the foregoing Warrant, execute this form and supply required information. Do not use this form to purchase shares.)
 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the foregoing Warrant and all rights evidenced thereby are hereby assigned to
 

Name:  
 (Please Print)
Address:  
 (Please Print)
Dated: _______________ __, ______  
  
Holder’s Signature:                                                     
 
Holder’s Address:                                                      
                                                         
 
 

 



 
 



 
Exhibit 31.1

 
CERTIFICATIONS

 
I, David Young, Chief Executive Officer and Acting Chief Financial Officer of PROCESSA PHARMACEUTICALS, INC. certify that:

 
1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of PROCESSA PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.;
  
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light

of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
  
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition,

results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
  
4. I am responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over

financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules13a-15(f) and 15d-15 (f)) for the registrant and have:
 

 a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

   
 b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

   
 c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure

controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
   
 d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the

registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

 
5. I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of

directors (or persons performing equivalent functions):
 

 a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely
affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

   
 b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial

reporting.
 

 Date:May 21, 2018
 By: /s/ David Young
  David Young
  Chief Executive Officer and Acting Chief Financial Officer
  (Principal Executive Officer, Principal Financial Officer and
  Principal Accounting Officer)
 
   



 
 



 
Exhibit 32.1

 
Written Statement of the Chief Executive and Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350
 
Solely for the purposes of complying with 18 U.S.C. §1350, I, the undersigned Chief Executive Officer and Acting Chief Financial Officer of PROCESSA
PHARMACEUTICALS, INC. (the “Company”), hereby certify, to the best of my knowledge, that the quarterly report on Form 10-Q of the Company for the quarter ended
March 31, 2018 (the “Report”) fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and that the information contained
in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.
 
This certification is being furnished solely to accompany this Report pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350 and is not being filed for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 and is not to be incorporated by reference into any filing of the registrant, whether made before or after the date hereof, regardless of any general incorporation language
in such filing.

 
 Date:May 21, 2018
 By: /s/ David Young
  David Young
  Chief Executive Officer and Acting Chief Financial Officer
  (Principal Executive Officer, Principal Financial Officer and
  Principal Accounting Officer)
 
   



 
 
 


